PROJECTS LIMITED

[A joint venture among NHPC Ltd and JKSPDC Ltd
(CIN: U40105JK2011G0I003321)

Financial Statement as on
31t March, 2025
(Rs. Integers)

Corporate Office:

Chenab Jal Shakti Bhawan,
Opposite Saraswati Dham,
Rail Head Complex,
Jammu - 180012 (J&K)



VAK & Associates.

Chartered Accountants,

First Floor, Khullar Market, Sector-3,
Trikuta Nagar, Jammu-180020 (J&K)
Phones: 0191-3500119: 9419190386
Email:vakjmu@gmail.com

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315March 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss
(Including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the Material
Accounting Policies and other explanatory notes for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as
the “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India(ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAlI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Branch Offices: (i Patel Chowk.Pathankat(Pb), (ii) Sujenpur,Paihankei{Pb), (il)) RailwayRoad, Paihanket (HP], FRN:019636N



VARK & AsSsOcClares.

Chartered Accountants,

First Floor, Khullar Market, Sector-3,
Trikuta Nagar, Jammu-180020 (J&K)
Phones: 0191-3500119: 9419190386
Email:vakjmu@gmail.com

When we read the other information as stated above and if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
describe necessary actions required as per applicable laws and regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not guaranteed that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fzair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Based on the verification of books of account of the Company and according to information and
explanations given to us, we give below a report on the Directions issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India in terms of sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Directions under section 143(5) of CompaniesAct 2013 ARHerR
Sn. Directions Remarks AN
1 | Whether the company has system in | According to the information and
place to process all the accounting explanations given to us and based on our audit,
transactions through IT system? If yes, | Company has its own IT system in place for
the implications of processing | processing all the accounting transactions.
accounting transactions outside IT | We have neither been informed nor have we come
system on the integrity of the accounts | across during the course of our audit any
along with the financial implications, if | accounting transactions having an impact on the
| any, may be stated. integrity of the accounts along with the financial
' implications which have been processed outside
the IT system.

2 | Whether there is any restructuring of an | According  to the information and

existing loan or cases of waiver/write-off
| of debts/loans/Interest etc. made by a
lender to the Company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.

explanation given to us and based on our audit,
there is no case of restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off debts/loans/interest
etc. made by lender to the Company.

received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/State Government or its
| agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its terms and
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Whether such cases are properly
accounted for?
3 | Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) | According  to the information and

explanation given to us and based on our audit, the
Company has accounted for/utilized the funds
received for specific schemes from Central/State
agencies as per the terms and conditions of the
schemes,

143(3) of the Act, we report that:

Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by Section

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Curnpany so far
as it appears from our examination of those boaks.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

(e) Interms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 05™June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act 2013 regarding disqualifications of the
Directors are not applicable as it is @ Government Company.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of internal financial controls.

(8) With respect to the other matters to he included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financlal statements- Refer Note No.34 (Other explanatory Notes to Accounts)-Point No.
1({a}(i} and Paint No.2(a).

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses against long-term contracts and
therefore the requirement for making provision in this respect is not applicable to the
Company.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. As per notification number G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, section 197 of the Act as regards managerial remuneration is not
applicable to the Company, since it is a Government Company.

v.(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) ar provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
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other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (v)(a) and (v) (b) of Rule 11(e) as provided above
contain any material misstatement.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutary
requirements for record retention.

vii. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed a final
dividend for the year.

for VA K & Associates.
Chartered Accountants.
FRN:019636N.

Date:  08.05.2025 &/Ninay Jamwal)
Place: Jammu

MRN:502417
UDIN: 25502417BMOGRNG476
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date).

With reference to Annexure “A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report the following in terms
of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”):

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

0 @ ]®

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) | The Company has a program of physical verification to cover the items of Property, Plant and
Equipmentin a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasanable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certainproperty,
plant, and equipmentof the company have been physically verified by the management
through an outside Agency once during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed in such verification.

(c) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than the
properties where the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the
Company except in the case of following immovable properties:

Description | Gross Whettier £2 i P il
sl promoter, | Periodheld |
VN8 | Heldin Directoror | indicate range
Property/ Value - _ G i it
= o name of their where
REoject (ns relative or appropriate
Crores) el RRLCRHaY
employee
Leasehold and mutation
recorded in revenue
records in the name of
GOVERNOR Governor(J&K)  through
P
angiake (J&K) CVPPPL  (Pakal  Dul)
Dul- FY 2015-16 S -
(177.8175 242.56 | through No To date considering special
Ha) ' CVPPPL provisions of Land laws of
(Pakul Dul) J&K due to article 370 of
Constitution (Now
abrogated in  August
2019)
: GOVERNOR Leasehold and mutation
Land/Kiru- .
(J&K) FY 2017-18to | recorded in  revenue
(82.8575 134.64 No .
Ha) through date records in the name of
CVPPPL Governor(J&K)  through
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i | (Kiru) CcvPPPL  (Pakal  Dul)
considering special
provisions of Land laws of
J&K due to article 370 of

Constitution (Now
abrogated in  August
2019)

Mutation of the Land
recorded in revenue
records in the name of

Govt. of J&K through
_ 2 k
Land/Kwar 16,68 Govt. of UT NG FY2021-22t0 | nop| (Kwar). Land is

(Beda el BRIGE LEE Freehold as per letter dt.
15.07.2023 issued by
Assistant Commissioner
| Revenue Kishtwar.

(d) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that the company has not revalued any of the Property, Plant &
Equipment (including Right to Use assets) or Intangible Assets or both during the year.

(e) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and Rules made there under. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (i) (e) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(ii) (a) | The Company has not commenced commercial production and as such there are no
inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital in
excess of X 5 crores in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the company,
we report that the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us the Company has, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, complied with the provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

v) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records has
not been specified by the Central Government under section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(vii) (a) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods & Service Tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, and other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no undisputed statutory dues including Goods &
Service Tax, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess,
| and other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the details of disputed dues of Goods & Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or other statutory dues, if any, as at March 31,

2025, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Period | Forum at Gross Amount
Statute Dues to which case is Disputed Deposited
which it pending amount under protest
pertain (in X Crore) (in X Crore)
s
CGST/ 2018-19 | Appeal is 2.46 NIL
CGST & J&K | SGST under process
SGST Act 2017 | CGST/ 2019-20 | for filing with 0.03 NIL
SGST Commissioner
| CGST/ 2021-22 | (Appeals) GST 0.73 NIL
| SGST
Interest on above Disputed Amount 0.34 NIL
TOTAL 3.56 NIL

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, and on overall examination of the financial statements of the company,
we report that there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) | (@ According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company and on overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) | According to the information and explanations given to us and the hasis of our examination
of the record of the company, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans
| were obtained.

(d) | According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima
facie, not been used during the year for long term purpose by the Company.

(e) | According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has no subsidiary
| and/or associate or joint venture during the year ended March 31, 2025. Hence, reporting
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under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) | According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of
cecurities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies (as defined under
the Act) and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) | According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised moneys by way of an initial public offer or further
| public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year and hence reporting on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) | As represented to us by the management and based on examination of the books and
records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given to us,
considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report
that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
course of the audit.

(b) | According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) | As represented to us by the management, there have been no whistleblower complaints
received by the company during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xii) (a) | According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii){c) of the Order are not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the
Company is in compliance with sactions 177 and 188 of Companies Act with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) | In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) | We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
I procedures.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any hon-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) | In our opinion, the company in not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
‘ Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not

'| applicable. J
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[ (b) | According to the information and explanations given to Us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that
the company has nat conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the period. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) | The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

of the Order is not applicable.

(d) | According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d)

in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the
company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and the company has not incurred cash loss

under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xviii) | There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly reporting

when they fall due.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and

(xx) As represented to us by the management,

order is not applicable.

(a) | There is no unspent amount for the F.Y. 2024-25 towards Corporate Social Responsibility
("CSR") on other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(XX) (a) of the

(b) | The amount remaining unspent under sub section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act,
pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to special account in compliance with
provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

this clause is not applicable to the company.

(xxi) | Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanation provided to us, reporting under

|

L |

Date: 08.05.2025
Place: Jammu

for V A K & Associates.
Chartered Accountants.
FRN#D19636N.

Branch Offices: () Patel Chowk, Pathankoi(Pb), (il sujanpur,Pathankot(Pb),

jiif) RailwayRoad,Pathankot (HP), FRN:019636N



VAK & Associates.

Chartered Accountants,

First Floor, Khullar Market, Sector-3,

Trikuta Nagar, Jammu-180020 (J&K)
Phones: 0191-3500119: 9419190386

Email:vakjmu@gmail.com

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even date)

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of
Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our
audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial control with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating
eoffectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements.

Branch Offices: (i} Paiel Chowk, Pathankot(Pol, [ii] Sujcnpur.thonkoi{Pb], (i) RailwayRoad,Pathankot [HP), FRM:019636N



VAK & Associates.

Chartered Accountants,

First Floor, Khullar Market, Sector-3,
Trikuta Nagar, Jammu-180020 (J&K)
Phones: 0191-3500119: 9419190386
Email:vakjmu@gmail.com

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone Financial Statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for V A K & Associates.
Chartered Accountants.
019636N.

Date:  08.05.2025 N ,inay]amwal)

Place: Jammu
MRN:502417
UDIN: 25502417BMOGRN6476

Branch Offices; (i| Patel Chowk, Palhankot(PR), (i) Sujanpur,Pathankot(Pl), (i) RailwayRoad,Pathankot (HF, FRN:019636N



CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

Signed as per separate report of even date

For V A K & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Rirm Regp. No. 0196

(CA. Vinay Jamw
Partner
M.NO. 502417

P

for and mﬁehalf of the Board of actors

(Rajendm%,(;wal}

Director
DIN No.0B645380

(Sanjay Kumar Gupta)

e

| Manager (Fi )

therh Vaidey
WY b aualis” BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2025
CIN: U40105JK2011G0I003321 (Amount in )
PARTICULARS Note Mo. As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
ASSETS
(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 24 1,96,88,13,143 1,48,7892 421
b) Capital Work In Progress 22 83,48 78 B4 459 49,13,51,11,243
¢) Right Of Use Assets 23 7,79,96,24,000 7.88,15,39,184
d) Investmenl Property 2.4 - -
&) Intangible Assets 25 55,16,228 79,39.495
f) Intangible Assets under development 26 - 1,06,41,843
g) Financial Assets
i} Investments 3:1 - -
il} Trade Receivables 3.2 z =
1) Loans 33 1,03,20 634 883,70,698
iv) Others 34 48,21,15,616 18,43,959
h) Other Non Current Assats 4 4,68,87,50,858 5.13,02,51,228
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 98,44,30,05,048 63,64,40,90,177
(2) CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 5 - -
b} Financial Assets
i) Investments 8 - -
i) Trade Receivables T = 5
iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 41,03,26,699 2858296944
iv) Bank balances cther than Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 28,11,00,000 28,11,00,000
v) Loans 10 1,22,97,987 89,50,185
vi) Others 11 4,76,69,84,757 2,62,03,80,599
c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 12 - -
dj Other Current Assets 13.1 21,23,25,589 4,07,29,993
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,68,30,35,032 5,80,94,57,721
(3) Assets Classified as held for Sale 13.2 6,94 656 1,76,134
{4)  Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balances 14.1 76,81,706 52,31,023
TOTAL ASSETS 1,04,13,44,16,442 69,45,89,55,055
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1)  EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 15.1 56,30,01,12,860 44,50,34,12 860
(b) Other Equity 15.2 77,35.35,154 3,18,98,46 3886
TOTAL EQUITY 57,07,36,48, 014 47 ,69,33,59 258
(2) LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
2) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 16.1 24,59,53,95,296 6,09,87,31,230
ii) Lease Liabilities 16.2 68,77,735 21,12,329
iii) Other financial liabilities 16.3 3,62.935 10,32,211
b) Provisions 17 17,9268 383 14,40,04 529
c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 - =
d) Other non-current Liabilities 19 14,67,55,88.730 10,77,69,63,744
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 39,45,74,94,079 17,02,28,44,113
(3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities
i} Borrowings 20.1 - -
ii) Lease Liabililies 202 87,73,139 69,456,373
iil) Trade Payables 203
Total cutstanding dues of micro and small entarprises 1,86,73,588 1,29,25,239
Total cutstanding dues of Creditors other than micro 42721902 2 8720909
and small enterprises T S
iv) Other financial liabilities 204 5,58,22,79,388 3,14,08,41 777
b) Other Current Liahbilities 21 31,66,55,704 20,57,08,381
¢) Provisions 22 1,63,61,70,618 1,34,78,11,027
d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,60,32,74,349 4,74 27 51,686
(4) Regulatory Deferral A Credit Bal 14.2 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 47,06,07,68,428 21,76,55,95,799
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1,04,13,44 16,442 69,45,89,565,055
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-34

(Rame khiya)

Managing tor
DIN No. 1 1&/

u al
Company S ary
FCS 7050

Place: Jam
Date: &)
=1




CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

CVPP, Jammu
Ay
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
CIN: U40105JK2011G01003321 (Amount in )
For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTIGULARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Note No.
INCOME
i) Revenue from Operations 241 . =
ii)  Other Income 24.2 10,89,13,219 35,75,40,100
TOTAL INCOME 10,89,13,219 35,75,40,100
EXPENSES
i} Purchase of Power - Trading 251 - -
i} Generation Expenses 252 - -
iiij  Employee Benefils Expense 26 12,59,85,384 10,58,05,585
iv)]  Finance Costs 27 1,05,112 5,66,642
v} Depreciation and Amartization Expensa 28 82,16,993 78,82,882
vi}  Other Expenses 29 7.48,85 490 4,61,74,903
TOTAL EXPENSES 20,92,02,979 16,04,30,012
PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT
BALANCES AND TAX {10,02,89,760) 19,71,10,088
Exceptional items % ”
PROFIT BEFORE REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT BALANCES AND TAX (10,02,89,760) 19,71,10,088
Income Tax Expenses 30.1
) Current Tax 289,72,165 8,98,85,488
i) Defarred Tax - -
Total Tax Expenses 2,69,72,165 8,98,85,488
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE NET MOVEMENTS IN REGULATORY DEFERRAL
ACCOUNT BALANCES (12,72,61,925) 10,72,24,600
Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) 31 24,50,683 (4,06,085)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (A} (12,48,11,242) 10,68,18,515
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (B} 30.2
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (Net of Tax)
(a) Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligaticns . =
Less:-Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) _ =
Sub total (a) = - 3
(b) Changes in ihe fair value of equily investments at FVTOCI - =
Sub total (b) - -
Total (i)={a)+(b) - &
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss {Net of Tax)
(a} Changes in the fair value of debt investments at FVTOCI - =
(b) Cost of Hedge Reserve - -
Total (i) - .
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax) (B)=(i+ii) - =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A+B) (COMPRISING OF PROFIT
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR| (1245,11,242) 10,58,18,615
Earning per share {Basic and Diluted) 3411
(Equity shares, face value of ¥ 10/- each)
Excluding movements in Regulatory Defarral Account Balances (0.0251) 0.02862
Including movements in Regulatery Deferral Account Balances (0.0246) 0.0261
Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-34
Signed as per separate report of even date for and on behalf of the Board of
B / -
S i/~
For V A K & Associates. (Rajendra Prasad Goyal) (Rame
Director Managin
DIN No.08645380 DIN No. 1
udldir Ariand
Company Secregfary
FCS 70,
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CiN: U40105JK2011G0I1003321

CVPPL, Jammu

Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited

S il STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

(Figures in ¥)

Parliculars

Forthe Year endod
st March, 2025

For the Year ended
315t March, 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTMITIES

Cash flow from Operating Activities before Operating Assels
& Liabillties adjustments (18,80,08,921) (15,01,48,698)
Changes in Operating Assels and Liabilities:
{Increase)/Deareass in Inventories - i
(Increase)/Decrease n Trade Recevables 4 5
ﬂ::?:i.’[}sueaae in Other Finanoial Assats, Loans and 62,51,68.499 (27.48.935)
Inoreasef{Decraasa) in Other Financial Lisbiies and Provisions 24,3553,238 4140507
Regulatory Deferral Ascount Balances (24,50,683) 406,085
86,52 81.054 17,497,657
Cash flow from operating astivities before taxes 67,82,82,133 (14,83,51,041)
Less: Inooma Takes Pald 5,76,89.213 9,07,64,672
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 62,06,82,920 -23.81,15,713
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investmant Proparty,
Other Intangible Assets, CWIP and Moveman! In Regulslory (34,03,13,11,896) (18,27 66,68,672)
Deferral Account Balances
Recaipt of Grant 33,84,33,000 -
Proczeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - L
Investment in Joint Venture (including Share Application Monay
panding allotment) ) -
i in Subsidiarizs (i Share Appiicalion Monsy
panding sliotment) = =
Loan to Subsidiarizs - 2
Repayment of Loan by Subsidiares - -
Interest on Loan o Subsidiaries/Joint Venturas - &
Nal Invastmant In Term Deposils (46,82 43,000) 2,07,54,00,001
Procesds from Sale of Invesiment = &
Dividend Income: - -
Interest Income & Guarantss Fees
{including Lste Payment Srchrge) 53,93,19,797 B84,02,89,708
Net Cash Flow Fromi{Used) in Investing Activities (B) -33,62,18,02,099 -15,36,08,78,963
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES
Jssue & Buyback of Equity Shares including Securily Premium 9,50,51,00,000 7,62,42,00,600
Dividend Paid - .
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 21,46,24,43,891 £,04,22,00,000
Proceeds from Short Term Bormowings (Net) - -
Repayment of Borowings - &
Interest & Finance Charges (40,67 87 375) (37,00,000)
Principai Repayment of Lease Liabiity (71,27 440) (1,01,19,098)
Interest pald on Laase Liahility (4,90,142) {?,35,321!
Nat Cash Flow From![Used) In Financing Activities [C ) 30,55,31,38,934 13,65,18.44.5681
NET INCREASE/[DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
D. EQUIVALENTS (A4B45) (2:44,79,70,245) (1,94,82,50,095)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 285,826,944 4,80,65,47 039
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year # 41,03 26,699 2,85,82 95 944

Profit bufore tax for tha year including movements in
Regulatery Deferral Account Balance

Less: Movemant in Rapulatory Deferral Accound Balarces (Mel of
Tax)
Profit before Tax

ADD :

Dapraciation and Amortization

Finance Cost (sl of EAC)

Pravisions Others (et of EAC)

Net Exchange rale varialion (Loss)

Sees adjusimant on aocount of Exchange Rats Varation
Loss/[Profit) on sale of Assets/Claims wrillsn off

Loss'on sale of [vestment

Fair valus Audiugiments

LESS:

Advance against Depreciation writlen back
Provisions (Net of EAC)

Dividend Incoms

Interest Income & Guarantss Feas
(inciuding Late Payment Surcharga)

Net Exchangs rate varlafian (Gain)

Olher Adjustments

Fair valus Audjusiments

Amerlisakon of Government Grants

Audited

Auvdited

(8,78,39,077)

24,50,683

(10,02,89,760)

B2,16,993
1,05,112
1,06,41,843
24,50,663

15,68,405

10,97 48,952

9,563,245

2,29,83,036
(7,73,08,724)

11,07.02.197

19,67,04,003

(405085)
19,71,10,088

78,82,882
566,642

470,077
13,64,504

1,859
1,02,85,984

20,73,96,052

35,75,44,750

357544750

# Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of B8 yearincludes 7 NIL (zorrespanding previous year # NIL) held in esrmarked current accounds which are not avall2béa for uss by the

Comgany

The above Stalement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with the Indirect method preseribed in Ind AS 7 - *Statsment of Cash Flows™,
*Figures for the previous yzar have been re-groupedire-srrangedire-classified/re-stated wheraver

Y




EXPLANATORY NOTES TO STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS

Cash and Cash equivalents consists of Cash in hand, chequesfdrafts in hands and Bank Balances Inciuding Short Term Deposits with enginal maturity of less
than three months. The detail of Cash and Cash equivalents is as under-

As at 31st Marcl

As at 31st March, 2025
Balances with Banks
With scheduled Banks:
- In Current Account
= In Deposits Account
(Depesits with original maturity of less than three months)
-In Current Accoun -Other Earmarked Balances with Banks E

Cash on Hand -

25,82,96,944

41,03,26,699
- 2,60,00,00,000

41,03,26,699

Interest and finanice charges in Cash Flow fram Financing Activities Includes borrowing cost of 40,67 87,375 Pravious year 2 37,00,000) capitalisad during the year on account of

Cash and Cash equivalents 2,85,82,96,944

2 =
Exp to (EAC).
3 Amount of undrawn loan as on 31.03. 2025 : ¥ B323,34 56,109/~ {Previous Year ¥ 872,20,00,000- ],
4
Company has incured ¥ 18,88,047)- in cash on account of Corporate Social Responsibifty (CSR) expanditure during the year ended 31st March, 2025 (Previcus Year ¥ 14,70,0001),
5 Net Debt Reconciliation :
(Amount in ¥
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Borrowings {Current & Non-Current) 24 B0,75,70,275 6,09,87,31,230
Lease Liability 1,36,50,874 90,56,702 =
Total 24,62,12,21,149 6,10,77,88,932
For the Year ended 31st March, 2025 For the Year ended 315t March, 2024
**Borrowin; **Borrowi
P £S5 ngs
e (Current & Non-  |Lease Liability Total (Current &Non- | Lease Liability Total
Current) Current)
|Opening Net Debt as on 1st April 6,09,87,31,230 90,58,702 6,10,77.80,032 3.84.54.67.174 1,49,39.319 3.86,04,06,493
Proceeds from Borrowings 21,46,24,43.891 - 21,46,24,43,891 6,04,22,00,000 6,04,22,00,000
Repayment of Borrowings/Lease Liability (71,27,440) (71,27,440) (1,01,19,098) (1,01,19,008)
Tnterest paid (40,67,87,375) (4.90,142) (30,72,77,517) (37,00,000 (7.36,321) (44,36.321)
Other Non-Cash s - -

Ti in Lease Liability - 1,17,19,612 1,17,19,612 42,38,481 42,38,481
-Foreign exchange adjustments - - - =
-Interest and Finance Charges 41,89,61,354 4,090,142 41,04,51,496 27.00,000 736,321 44,536,321
-Fair value adjustments (z,96,57,78,825) - (2,96,57,78,825) (3,78,89,35,944) (3,78,89,35,044)
Closing Net Debt as on 315t March 24,60,75,70,275 1,30.50.874 24,62,12,21,149 6,09,87,31,230 go.58,702 6,10,77,80,032

""For Borrowings refer Note No.16.1, 20.1 and 20.4 (Item namely [nterest Accrued on Barrowings - due & not due)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Rajendra Prasdd Goyal)
Director

For V A K & Assoclates.
Chartered Accountants
(Fy RaﬁNu. 01886386l

DIN No.(8643380

Place : Jammu

Date : Dg,
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CHENAB VALLEY POWER PROJECTS LIMITED

NOTE NO. 1: COMPANY INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(I) Reporting entity

Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited (the “Company”) is a Joint Venture of NHPC Limited (A Gol
Enterprise), JKSPDC (A GoJK Enterprise) and a Company domiciled in India (CIN:
U40105JK2011GOI003321). The address of the Company’s registered office is Chenab Valley Power
Projects Limited, Chenab Jal Shakti Bhawan, Opposite Saraswati Dham, RailHead Complex, Jammu,
UT of Jammu & Kashmir-180012. The Company is primarily involved in the generation and sale of
bulk power to various Power Utilities.

(II) Basis of preparation
(A)Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent
amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the provisions of the Electricity Act,
2003 to the extent applicable.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 08.05.2025.
(B)Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for:

» Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

» Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in Note 33.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds
received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected
to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

(C) Application of new and revised standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated g September 2024 and 28
September 2024 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024,
respectively, which amended/ notified certain accounting standards and are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

a) Insurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and -
b) Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback Amendments to Ind AS 116

The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on the Company’s
financial statements.




(D) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the
Nearest Lacs (up to two decimals) for the Company. However, at Unit level, figures are
presented in rupees (absolute number).

(E) Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the application of accounting
policies and the reported valué of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures
including contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates
and management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors considered
reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that
may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
included in the following notes:

Critical judgments and estimates
a) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116-Leases. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.

The Company also uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

b) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are based
on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological
advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

¢) Recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in
Progress and Intangible Assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and
intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions, in particular the expected
market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any changes in
these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable
amount resulting in impairment.

d) Post-retirement benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions in respect of future
developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increase, inflation rate and expected rate
of return on plan assets. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions
may have an impact on the resulting calculations.




e)

8)

h)

i)

K)

Revenue

The Company shall record revenue from sale of power based on tariff approved by the
CERC, as per the principles of Ind AS 115- Revenue Jrom Contracts with Customers.
However, in cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates are adopted
considering the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Further, where revision in tariff due
to revision in cost estimates are pending, tariff is computed based on the parameters and
methods prescribed under the CERC Tariff Regulations and an estimated amount of
revenue is recognised when an application is made to the CERC after obtaining necessary
approvals to the extent it is highly probable that there will be no downward adjustment to
the revenue recognised. '

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and caonti ngencies have been made
in accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has been made on the basis of
best judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. These
estimates can change due to unforeseeable developments.

Recoverable Amount of Rate Regulated Assets

The operating activities of the Company are subject to cost-of-service regulations whereby
tariff charged for electricity generated is based on allowable costs like interest costs,
depreciation, operation and maintenance mcluding a stipulated return. Guidance Note on
Rate Regulated Activities issued by the ICAI (previous GAAP) and Ind AS 114- ‘Regulatory
Deferral Accounts’ permits an entity to include in the rate base, as part of the cost of self-
constructed (tangible) PPE or internally generated intangible assets, amounts that would
otherwise be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance
with Ind AS. The Company estimates that items of regulatory deferral accounts recognised
in the financial statements are recoverable as per the current CERC Tariff Regulations
2019-24. However, changes in CERC tariff regulations beyond the current tariff period
may affect the recoverability of such balances.

Impairﬁlent of Trade Receivables

Considering the historical credit loss experience for trade receivables, the Company does
not envisage either impairment in the value of receivables from beneficiaries or loss due to
time value of money owing to delay in realization of trade receivables, except to the extent
already provided for. CERC Tariff Regulations provide for recovery of Late Payment
Surcharge for delayed payments which compensates for loss due to time value of money,
except to the extent already provided for.

Insurance Claim Recoverable

The recoverable amount of insurance claims in respect of damages to Property, Plant and
Equipment and Capital Work in Progress is based on estimates and assumptions as per
terms and conditions of insurance policies and management estimate of amount
recoverable from the Insurance Company based on past experience.

Income taxes

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified
Carbon Units (VCUs)

The cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon
Units (VCUs) shall be measured as per Management estimate whenever applicable.




1) Assets classified as held for sale

Management judgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for
sale under Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’. In
assessing the applicability, management exercises judgment to evaluate availability of the
asset for immediate sale, management’s commitment for the sale and probability of sale
within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

m) Capital Spares designated as part of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Management evaluates whether an item of inventory qualifies as a capital spare forming
part of Property, Plant & Equipment on the basis of various factors, including cost of the
item, period over which benefits from the item is expected to accrue and allowability of
the item in Tariff. On the basis of such evaluation and in line with the provisions of the
CERC Tariff Regulations for the period 2024-29, items of inventory costing more than Rs
10 Lakh, benefits from which are expected to be received over more than one accounting
year are designated as Property, Plant & Equipment.

(II1) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Summary of the material accounting policies for the preparation of financial statements as given
below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. These
accounting policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing
relevant and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they
apply. These policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

Up to March 31, 2015, Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress, Intangible Assets
and Investment Property were carried in the Balance Sheet in accordance with Indian GAAP. The
Company had elected to avail the exemption granted by IND AS 101, “First time adoption of IND AS”
to regard those amounts as the deemed cost at the date of transition to IND AS (i.e., as on April 1,
2015). Therefore, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, Capital Work in Progress,
intangible assets and Investment Property as per the previous GAAP as at April 1, 2015, were
maintained on transition to Ind AS.

1.0  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a) An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably.

b) PPE are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including decommissioning or
restoration cost wherever required. The cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. In cases where final settlement of bills with
contractors is pending, but the asset is complete and available for operating in the manner
intended by the management, capitalisation is done on estimated basis subject to necessary
adjustments, including those arising out of settlement of arbitration/court cases.

c) Subsequent costs is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the

cost of the item can be measured reliably.

d) Expenditure incurred on renovation and modernization of power station on completion of
the originally estimated useful life of the power station is added to the cost of the related
asset when it meets the recognition criteria. PPE acquired as replacement of the existing
assets are capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use
are derecognized.



e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

k)

D

a)

b)

c)

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Deposits, payments made/ liabilities created provisionally towards compensation (including
interest on enhanced compensation till the date of award by the Court), rehabilitation &
resettlement and other expenses including expenditure on environment management plans
relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

Assets over which the Company has control, though created on land not belonging to the
Company, are included under Property, Plant and Equipment.

Standby equipment and servicing equipment which meet the recognition criteria of Property,
Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Spares parts (procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently) which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized. The carrying amount of those spare parts that are
replaced is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or
upon disposal. Other spare parts are treated as “stores and spares” forming part of inventory.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it
meets the asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous inspection and overhaul is derecognized.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the replaced part has been
depreciated separately. If it is not practicable to.determine the carrying amount of the
replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost
of replaced part was at the time it was acquired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition/
disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Capital work in Progress (CWIP)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost
under CWIP. Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties and non-
refundable taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), expenditure in relation to
survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of site preparation, initial delivery and
handling charges, installation and assembly costs, ete.

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-
gradation of common public facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction of project
including Right-of-Use assets, interest during construction and other costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management are accumulated under “Expenditure
Attributable to Construction (EAC)” and subsequently allocated on systematic basis over
major immovable assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of
projects. Net pre-commissioning income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of
related assets.

Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not
have control but the creation of which is essential principally for construction of the project
is accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction” and carried under “Capital
Work in Progress” and subsequently allocated on a systematic basis over major immovable



3.0

5.0

assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of projects, keeping in
view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure” concepts in Ind AS 16- “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. Expenditure of such nature incurred after completion of the project, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development

a)

b)

d)

e)

Expenditure on research is charged to expenditure as and when incurred. Expenditure on
development is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to
use or sell the asset.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes any directly attributable expenses
necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets under development represent expenditure incurred on intangible assets
which are in the development phase and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
itis probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Foreign Currency Transactions

a)

b)

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. At each reporting date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currency are translated at the functional currency exchange
rates prevailing on that date.

Exchange differences arising from settlement/ translation of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency entered into on or after April 1, 2016 to the extent
recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff
Regulations are recognized as ‘Regulatory Deferral Account Balances’ during construction
period and adjusted from the year in which the same become recoverable from or payable
to the beneficiaries.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Where the Company
has paid or received advance consideration in a foreign currency, the date of transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is the date when the Company initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

a)

Where an item of expenditure incurred during the period of construction of a project is
recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss i.e., not allowed to be
capitalized as part of cost of relevant PPE in accordance with Ind AS, but is nevertheless
permitted by CERC to be recovered from the beneficiaries in future through tariff, the
right to recover the same is recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”
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a)

b) Expense/ income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent recoverable
from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations
are recognised as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

c) These Regulatory Deferral Account balances are adjusted from the year in which the same
become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

d) Regulatory Deferral Account balances are evaluated at each Balance Sheet date to ensure
that the underlying activities meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with such balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are
not met, the Regulatory Deferral Account balances are derecognised.

e) Regulatory Deferral Account balances are tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet
date.

Fair value measurement

At initial recognition, transaction price is the best evidence of fair value. However, when the
Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-
alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable mputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This categorisation is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity
or contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or
financial liability under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company. A
financial asset is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances,
Investments in equity shares of companies, Trade Receivables, Loan to employees, security
deposit, claims recoverable etec.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

. At amortised cost,

. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
. At fair value through profit and loss

The classification depends on the following;:

(a) The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.



b)

c)

d)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or under Other Comprehensive Income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures trade receivables at their transaction price, if the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing component.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met:

i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and '

ii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI).

Debt instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are measured at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses,
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the EIR method.

Trade Receivables:

Trade receivables containing a significant financing component are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

i) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or
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e)

ii) Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount and the amount of
consideration received / receivable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

i) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
ii) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

iii) Contract Assets and Trade Receivables under Ind AS 115-Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

iv) Lease Receivables under Ind AS 116-Leases.

The Company follows the ‘simplified approach’ permitted under Ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments” for recognition of impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit
loss from initial recognition on contract assets, lease receivables and trade receivables
resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 115.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. Any increase
or reversal of loss allowance computed using ECL model, is recognized as an impairment
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise stores and spare parts to be used for maintenance of Property,
Plant and Equipment and are valued at cost or net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower.
The cost is determined using weighted average cost formula and NRV is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in which write-down or loss occurs.
Financial liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. A

financial liability is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.



a) Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion, over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

b) Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or
in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments that are held by the Company to hedge the foreign currency
and interest rate risk exposures and are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

10.0 Government Grants

a) The benefits of a government loan at a below market rate of interest is treated as a
Government Grant. The loan is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the
grant is measured as the difference between the initially recognized amount of the loan
and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial liabilities and the grant is recognized initially as deferred
income and subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

b) Monetary grants from the government for creation of assets are initially recognised as
deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The deferred
income so recognised is subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the useful life of the related assets.
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¢) Government grant related to income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a

systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a)

b)

c)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision net of any
reimbursement is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount
of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of
judgment of management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the oecurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in

~ the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of

judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition and Other Income

Company’s revenues arise from sale of energy and other income. Revenue from other income
comprises interest from banks, employees, contractors etc., surcharge received from
beneficiaries for delayed payments, sale of scrap, other miscellaneous income, etc.

a) Revenue from sale of power

i) Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises
revenue from contracts for sale of power over time as the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company.

ii) Revenue from sale of power (except minimum lease receipts in respect of power
stations considered as Finance Lease/Operating Lease) is accounted for as per tariff
notified by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) under the CERC
(Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations as modified by the orders of Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity to the extent applicable.In the case of Power Stations where

- provisional/ final tariff is yet to be notified or where incentives/disincentives are
chargeable/payable as per CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, revenue
is recognised to the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the



amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Rebates given to
beneficiaries as early payments incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue,

iif) Customers are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date,
revenue from sale of power includes an acerual for sales delivered to customers but
not yet billed (unbilled revenue).

iv) Recovery/ refund towards foreign currency variation in respect of foreign currency
loans and recovery towards Income Tax are recognised on year to year basis based on
regulatory norms.

v) Adjustments arising out of finalisation of Regional Energy Account (REA), though
not material, are effected in the year of respective finalisation.

b) Other income

i) For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

1) Interest/Surcharge recoverable from customers including those arising out of
contracts for trading of power and liquidated damages /interest on advances to
contractors is recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of revenue recognised will not occur in the future. '

¢) Revenue from sale of carbon credits/ CERs/VERs

Revenue shall be recognized on transfer/ sale of Carbon Credits/ Certified Emission
Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) to the extent it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognized will not occur in the
future.,

13.0 Employee Benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed or included in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance
related cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

ii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into Provident Fund Scheme and a separate trust for Social Security
Scheme and will have no legal or conmstructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss or included in the carrying amount of
an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction from future payments is available, Contributions to a
defined contribution plan that is due more than 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

Employee Provident Fund Scheme and Social Security Scheme are accounted for as
defined contribution plans.
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iil) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s Gratuity Scheme, Retired Employees Health Scheme
(REHS), Allowance on Retirement/Death and Memento on Superannuation to employees
are in the nature of defined benefit plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity and Retired
Employees Health Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by the actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income in the
period in which they occur and are included in retained earnings in the Statement of
Changes in Equity.

iv) Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment scheme constitute other long term
employee benefits.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of
future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market
yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Contributions to the scheme and actuarial gains or
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the period in which they
arise.

v) Termination benefits

The expenses incurred on terminal benefits in the form of ex-gratia payments and notice
pay on voluntary retirement schemes are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year of incurrence of such expenses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method
as described in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in respect of finance
leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116— ‘Leases’ and(c) exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs and guarantee fee on loan paid to third parties.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualitying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily
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take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of
the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that
are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or
erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are excluded from this calculation,
until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale

are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization

a) Depreciation on additions to /deductions from Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from / up to the date on which the asset is
available for use / disposal.

b) (i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of Operating Units of the Company
capitalized till five years before the end of the useful life of the Power Station is charged
to the Statement of Profit & Loss on straight-line method following the rates and
methodology notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 15.0(d).

(ii) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment capitalized during the last five years
of the useful life of a Power Station is charged on straight-line method for the
remaining operational life/ period of extended life as per CERC Tariff
Regulations/Orders, from the date on which such asset becomes available for use.

(iif) Where the life and / or efficiency of a Power Station is increased due to renovation
and modernization, the expenditure thereon along with its unamortized depreciable
amount is charged prospectively on straight-line method over the revised / remaining
useful life. :

¢) 1) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (except old and used) of other than
Operating Units of the Company is charged to the extent of 90% of the cost of the asset
following the rates notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 15.0(d).

ii) Depreciation on old and used items of PPE of other than Operating Units is charged
on straight-line method tothe extent of 90% of the cost of the asset over estimated useful
life determined on the basis of technical assessment.

d) i) Depreciation in respect of following items of PPE is provided on straight line method
based on the useful life and residual value (5%) given in the Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013:

- Construction Plant and Machinery
- Computer and Peripherals '

ii) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Mobile Phones is provided on straight
line basis over a period of three years with residual value of Re 1.



e)

g)

h)

i)

j)

k)

D

iii)Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Roof Top Solar Power System /
Equipment is provided on straight line basis over a period of twenty five years with
residual value of 10%. '

iv) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on furniture& other equipment provided
at residential office of employees is charged on straight line basis over a period of five
years with residual value of 10%

Temporary erections are depreciated fully (100%) in the year of acquisition
/capitalization by retaining Re. 1/- as WDV.

All assets valuing Rs. 5000/- or less but more than Rs. 750/- are fully
depreciated/amortised during the year in which the asset becomes available for use with
WDV of Re. 1/- for tangible assets and NIL for Intangible Assets.

Low value items, which are in the nature of assets (excluding immovable assets) and
valuing up to Rs. 750/- are not capitalized and charged off to expenditure in the year of
use.

Leasehold Land of operating units is amortized over the period of lease or over the life of
the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and 25 years in case of Solar & Wind
Projects) whichever is lower, following the rates and methodology notified vide CERC
tariff regulations. '

Leasehold Land and buildings of units other than operating units, is amortized over the
period of lease or over the life of the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and
25 years in case of Solar & Wind Projects), whichever is lower.

PPE created on leasehold land are depreciated to the extent of 90% of original cost over
the balance available lease period of respective land from the date such asset is available
for use or at the applicable depreciation rates & methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations for such assets, whichever is higher.

Land-Right of Use in case of Hydro Project is amortized over a period of 40 years from
the date of commercial operation of the project following the rates and methodology
notified vide CERC tariff regulations.

Cost of software recognized as ‘Intangible Assets’ is amortized on straight line method
over a period of legal right to use or three years, whichever is earlier, starting from the
date when the asset becomes available for use. Other intangible assets are amortized on
straight line method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant,
whichever is less. The period and method of amortization of intangible assets with finite
useful life is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever
required.

m) Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to

n)

increase/decrease in long term liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price
adjustment, settlement of arbitration/court cases, change in duties or similar factors, the
unamortized balance of such assets is depreciated prospectively over the residual life of
such assets at the rate of depreciation and methodology notified by CERC tariff

regulations.

Spare parts procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently which are
capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item are depreciated over the
residual useful life of the related plant and machinery at the rates and methodology
notified by CERC.

Useful life, method of depreciation and residual value of assets where depreciation is
charged as per management assessment are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted prospectively over the balance useful life of the asset, wherever required.
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Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an

asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an

asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value

less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely

independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an

asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is .
written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators. Fair value less costs of disposal is determined only
in case carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds the value in
use.

In case of expenditure on survey & investigation of projects, if it is decided to abandon
such a project, expenditure incurred thereon is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which such decision is taken.

In case a project under survey and Investigation remains in abeyance by the order of
appropriate authority/ by injunction of court order, any expenditure incurred on such
projects from the date of order/ injunction of court is provided in the books from the date
of such order till the period project is kept in abeyance by such order/ injunction.
Provision so made is however reversed on the revocation of aforesaid order/ injunction.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications. that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year on the basis of
the tax laws applicable at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in
previous years. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years (temporary differences) and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible (permanent differences).
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b)
i)

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the Balance
Sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset or liability in a transaction
that at the time of the transaction affects neither the taxable profit or loss nor the
accounting profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would flow in the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which
case it is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax recovery adjustment account is credited/ debited to the extent the deferred
tax for the current period forms part of current tax in the subsequent periods and affects
the computation of return on equity (ROE), a component of tariff.

When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses
whether a tax authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax treatment. If it concludes that
the tax authority is unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of the
uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is
recognised. The effect of the uncertainty is recognised using the method that, in each
case, best reflects the outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome or the
expected value. For each case, the Company evaluates whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately, or in conjunction with another or several other
uncertain tax treatments, based on the approach that best prefixes the resolution of
uncertainty.

Compensation from third parties

Impairments or losses of items, related claims for payments of compensation from third
parties including insurance companies and any subsequent purchase or construetion of
assets/inventory are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

Compensation from third parties including from insurance companies for items of property,
plant and equipment or for other items that were impaired, lost or given up is included in the
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Statement of Profit and Loss when the compensation becomes receivable. Insurance claims
for loss of profit are accounted for based on certainty of realisation.

Segment Reporting

a) In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segment, the operating segments used to
present segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the
Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating
Decision Maker” or “CODM” within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

b) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a contract.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether the contract involves the use of an identified asset, whether the Company has the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of lease and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. If the
supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified. Where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset if it has the right to operate the asset, or the
Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a
lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

i. Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

Land taken for use from State Government (without transfer of title) and expenses on relief
and rehabilitation as also on creation of alternate facilities for land evacuees or in lieu of
existing facilities coming under submergence and where construction of such alternate
facilities is a specific pre-condition for the acquisition of the land for the purpose of the
project, are accounted for as Right of Use Assets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset
by the end of lease term or if the cost of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase option
will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated/ amortized from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of



disposal and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the incremental borrowing rate. Future lease payments comprise of the fixed
payments, including in-substance fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise or
the penalty for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or when a lease contract is modified,
and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in respect
of short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases where the
underlying asset is of low-value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

Where the Company determines a long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to be or to
contain a lease and where the off taker has the principal risk and rewards of ownership of the
power plant through its contractual arrangements with the Company, the arrangement is
considered a finance lease. For embedded leases in the nature of a Finance Lease, the
investment in the power station is recognised as a Lease Receivable. The minimum lease
receipts are identified by segregating the embedded lease receipts from the contract amounts
(including Advance Against Depreciation (AAD) recognised in accordance with CERC Tariff
regulations 2004-09 up to 31st March 2009 and considered as deferred income). Each lease
receipt is allocated between the receivable and finance lease income (forming part of revenue
from operations) so as to achieve a constant rate of return on the Lease Receivable

outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated
unguaranteed residual value and applies the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109-
Financial Instruments for recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the lease
receivables,
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Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease
receivables, except for credit-impaired financial assets for which interest income is calculated
with reference to their amortised cost (i.e. after a deduction of the loss allowance).

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS
115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

In the case of Operating Leases or embedded operating leases, the lease income from the
operating lease is recognised in revenue over the lease term to reflect the pattern of use
benefit derived from the leased asset. The respective leased assets are included in the Balance
Sheet based on their nature and depreciated over its economic life.

Business combinations

(i) Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at
the date of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company.
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognized at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Where the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceed the consideration transferred, after reassessing the
fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognized as capital
reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

(ii) Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method wherein the assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts and no adjustments are made to
reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are
made are to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as
if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated
only from that date.

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become
the reserves of the transferee. The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share
capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented
separately from other capital reserves.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred
before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for
the earliest period presented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the
comparative information is adjusted to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from
the earliest date practicable.

Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year.

b) Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the



weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

¢) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are also presented using the earnings
amounts excluding the movements in regulatory deferral account balances.

24.0 Statement of Cash Flows
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. However, for Balance Sheet presentation, Bank
overdrafts are shown within “Borrowings” under Current Liabilities.

b) Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Ind AS 7- ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

25.0 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

a) An asset is current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
b) A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
¢) Deferred tax assets /liabilities are classified as non-current assets / liabilities.

26.0 Non -Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. Indicators in this regard include whether
management is committed to the sale, whether such sale is expected to be completed within
one year from the date of classification as held for sale and whether the actions required to
complete the plan of sale indicates that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. Non-Current Assets held for sale and disposal
groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their fair value. Cost of
disposal is deducted from the recognized value, if significant. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.



27.0 Events Occurring After Balance Sheet Date:

Impact of events occurring after Balance Sheet date that provide additional information
materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the
Balance Sheet date are adjusted to the respective assets and liabilities.

The Company does not adjust the amounts recognized in its Financial Statements to reflect
the impact of events or conditions that arises after the reporting year.

Significant events arising after the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Financial

Statements.

28.0 Miscellaneous

a) Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements.
Items of a dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are

immaterial.

b) Liabilities for Goods in transit/Capital works executed but not certified are not provided
for, pending transfer of ownership, inspection and acceptance by the Company.

Signed as an annexure to Balance Sheet

for V A K & Associates.
Directors

Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 019636N)

Place : Jammu

Date i&‘hgg&:)«f

for and on behalf of the Board of

(Rajendra’Prasad Goyal)
Director
DIN No.08645380

upta) (SM{%
(

Company Secretary
FCS 7050

(Sarjay
General Manager (Finance)
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e T

s SRS AR
(Amount in &}
S.No |Particulars As at Addition Adjust Capitalised As at 31st March, @
01-Apr-2024)
i Roads and Bridges 7835828680 205249240 (133178) 8475501 959224432
i Building: 8316026631 3627472195 {BO505) 22261514 11921156807
[ii] Building-Under Lease 2 i .
iv Railway sidings = .
v) T'Y;:fo”':::'h‘;r:féga“"lse':\:j:ﬁ;;‘;"d"m’ Aystem, 19943149372 24257320579 (7320277} 44193149674
Vi) Generaling Plant and Machinery 7123442570 3802891445 {998000) 10725438018
vii) Plant and Machinery - Sub station 3135185 (1088353) 2046842
\vii) | Plant and Machinery - Transmission lines 107568521 205325583 1088353 313982757
ix) Plant and Machinery - Others » =
x) Construction Equipment - &
i) Watsr Supply Syslem/Drainage and Sewerage 3749563 2447258 1641220 4655601
| xii) Computers = -
| i) Communication Equif ment - -
Xiv) Office Equipments - 5206000 5206000
Xxv) Assels awaiting Installation g 851053 851053
xvi) CWIP - Assets Under 5 KM Scheme Of the GOI z .
xvii) Survey, investigation, consultancy and supervision charges 405623227 10757232 416380459
xviii} _ |Expenditure on comg ory Affor ion 2 -
Xix) Expendifure atiributable o construction (Refer Note-32) 12458710378 2477721117 (B80690) 14945750805
Less: Capital Work in Progress Provided (Refer Note 2.2.4) - -
Sub total (a) 49134889326 34395342003 (9210648)| 33378235 83487742446
Construction Stores 122023 - 122023
Less : Provisions for construction stores " = S
Sub total (b) 122023 = - - 122023
TOTAL 49135111349 34395342003 (9210648) 33378235 83487864469
Previous year 29767382237 19529540891 (1811383) 1E01D0488 49135111349
2.21 a) CWIP aging schedule as on 31st March 2025
cwip Amount in CWIP for a period of | Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 Years
Projects in Progress 34,35.27 53120 20,07,19.23 410 10.42.68,54,008 18,63 6333 831 B3 48 TE 64 450
Projects temporarily Suspended -
Total 34,35,27,53,120 20,07,18,23.410 10,42 68,54,008 18,63,63,33,831 83,48,78,64,459
b) CWIP Completi t as on 31st March 2025 for delayed projects
CWIP To be Comp lin Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
Pakal Dul HEP - L - 54,28.43.74.194 54,28,43.74,194
Kiru HEP - 22,4293 81.058 ~ - 22,42 83 81,058
Total - 22,42,93.81,058 - 54,28,43.74 194 76.71,37,55,252
222 (a) CWIP aging schedule as an 31st March 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
i Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years e
Projects in Progress 16,36.77.29.112 11,01,31.74,402 584 1822 453 12,91,23,85,382 49,13,51,11,349
Projects temporarily Suspended -
Total 19,36, 77,25,112 11,01.31,74,402 5,84,18.22, 453 12,81,23,85,282 49,13,51,11.348
(b) CWIP Completion Schedule as on 31st March 2024 for delayed projects
To be Compl in
cwip Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years o
Pakal Dul HEF - - 32756577393 - 32,75,66,77.393
Kiru HEP - 12,80,93,63,831 - - 12,80,93,63 891
Total 12,90,83,63.891 32,75,66,77,393 - 45,66,59.41.284

2.2.3 Expenditure aftributable to Construction (EAC) includes ¥ 58,44,13,161/- (Previous year % 31 /52,80,080/-) towards borrowing cost capilalised during the year,

2.:2.4 Underground Warks amounting to 2 287,17 49,433/ (Previous year ¥ 232,23 49,3421-) crested on "Land -Right o Use"

Capital Wark in Prograss (CWIP).

2.2.5 Refer Note no. 34(8) of Financial Statemants for information of nan-current assels pledged with banks as security for related borrowings.

2.2.8 Refer Note no. 34(17) of Finencial Statements for information regarding Impairment of Assets.

2.2.7 Amount shown under adjustment column includes amount of claim w.r.t 9% SGST to be reimbursed by the State Taxes Depariment, Governmant of J&K to the Company in terms of schames
“Reimbursement of State Goods and Services Taxes an Ulilization of Goods and Service in the Power Projects in the Unian Territory of Jammu and Kashmir (RSGTPP)” for develepment and
construction of Pakal Dul, Kiru and Kwar HEP notified by Finance Depariment, Govarnment of Jammu & Keshmir vide Notification SO. 281 dt. 17.08 2021 and interhead adjustments ete.

classified under Right of Use Assals, are included under respective heads of
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NOTE NO. 3.1 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Total

NOTE NO. 3.2 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Trade Receivables - Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note 3.2.1, 3.2.2
and 3.2.3)

Total

3.2.1 Refer Annexure-l to Note No-3.2 for Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables.

3.2.2 Debt due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either
severally or jointly wilh any other person or debts due by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director of the Company is a partner or a
director or a member.

3.2.3 Debt due by subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures and others related parties of the
company .

Nil

Nil

3.2.4 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil

Nil




NOTE NO. 3.3 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

At Amortised Cost
Loan to Related Party - Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less: Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party (Refer Note 3.3.4)

Sub-total

Loans to Employees (including accrued interest) (Refer Note 3.3.2 and
3.3.3)

- Considered good- Secured

- Considered good- Unsecured

- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans (Refer Note 3.3.4)

8,865,046
94,55 588

8,32,198
80,38,502

Sub-total

1,03,20,634

88,70,698

Contractor / supplier
- Considered gocd- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
— Against bank guarantee
— Others
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured
Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful advances to Contractor/ Supplier (Refer
Note 3.3.5)

Sub-total

State Government in settlement of dues from customer

- Considered good- Secured

- Considered good- Unsecured

- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Loan to State Government (Refer Note
3.3.6)

Sub-total

Loan including Interest to Government (Refer Note 3.3.7)
- Considered good- Unsecured

Sub-total

TOTAL

1,03,20,634

88,70,698

3.3.2

333

3.3.4

335

3.3.6

337

3.3.8 Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the company. The Carrying value may be

3.3.9

Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are repayable on demand.

Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are without pecifying any terms
or period of repayment.

Due from directors or other officers of the company. (Refer Note 34(8) of
Financial Statements).

Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party

Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans
Addition during the year

Closing balance

Loss Allowances for doubtful advances to Contractor/ Supplier
Addition during the year

Closing balance

Loss Allowances for doubtful Loan to State Government
Addition during the year

Closing balance

Loan to Government granted for Business Purpase includes -

- Principal
- Interest

affected by the changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.
Advance due by firms or private companies in which any Director of the
Company is a Director or member .

Nil

3.3.10 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances,

Nil




NOTE NO. 3.4 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A Security Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured
Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 3.4.1)

1,38,72,040

18,43,959

Sub-total

1,38,72,040

18,43,959

Bank Depasits with more than 12 Months Maturity (Refer Note 3.4.2)
Lease Rent receivable
Amount Recoverable on account of Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of
India
Interest receivable on lease
Interest accrued on:
- Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity
Derivative Mark to Market Asset
Derivative Asset Under Hedged Contract
Receivable on account of Late payment Surcharge
Receivable on account of Guaraniee Fee
Amount Recoverable
Share Application Money Pending Allotment
- Subsidiary /Jaint Venture
Less:-Loss allowances for Share application money pending allotment

mm O oo

r X«—-—T @

46,82,43,000

Sub-total

TOTAL

48,21,15,616

18,43,959

3.4.1 Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used dunng the year

Reversed during the year

Closing halance

3.4.2 Bank Deposits of more than 12 months maturity includes FDR of Rs. 46,82,43,000/- which has b=en taken to provide 100% margin money

for Bank Guarantee issued by the Company for obtaining electricity connection.

3.4.3 Refer Note 34(9) of the Financial Statements with regard to assets mortgaged/hypothecated s security.

3.4.4 Loss Allowances for Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

3.4.5 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.




NOTE NO. 4 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Amountin ¥)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

B.

CAPITAL ADVANCES
- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
— Against bank guarantee
— Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful - Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances (Refer Note 4.1)

Sub-total

ADVANCES OTHER THAN CAPITAL ADVANCES
i) DEPOSITS
- Considered good- Unsecured

Less : Expenditure booked against demand raised by Government

Departments.
- Considered doubtful - Unsecured
Less : Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 4.2)

Sub-total

Interest accrued
Others

- Considered Good
Others

Released to Contractors - Against Bank Guarantee
Released to Contractors - Others

Deposited with Court

Less: Expenditure booked pending Settlement of Cases

Sub-total

ii} Prepaid Expenditure

iii) Non Current Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source
Less: Provision for Current Tax
Non Current Tax (Refer Note 23)

iv) Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets/ Expenditure

Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets
Deferred Expenditure on Foreign Currency Fluctuation

Sub-total

v) Deferred Cost on Employees Advances

11.42,69,871

1,68,11,66,400
2,86,17,31,567

36.64,14,502

2,59,22,99,216
1,99,25,51,636

4,63,71,67,838

4,95,12,65,354

Advance against arbitration awards towards capital works (Unsecured)

1,32,21,950

17,54,32,520

34,53,428

3,17,20,031

11,02,983

3,17,20,031

11,02,983

31,87,611

24,50,371

TOTAL

4,68,87,50,858

5,13,02,51,228

4.1 Allowances for doubtful Advances

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

4.2 Allowances for doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

4.3 Due from Directors or other officers of the company,
4.4 Advances due by Firms or Private Companies in which any director of the
Company is a director or member.

Nil
Nil

4.5 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Siatements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil
Nil




NOTE NO. 5

INVENTORIES

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

5.

-

(Valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)

Stores and spares

Stores and spares-Stores in transit/ pending inspection

Loose tools

Material at site

Material issued to contractors/ fabricators

Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) / Verified Carbon Units
(VCUs) (Refer Note 34(30) for Quantitative details of Carbon Credit
certificates)

Total

Less: Allowances for Obsolescence and Diminution in Value (Refer Note 5.1)

TOTAL

Allowances for Obsolescence and Diminution in Value
Opening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 5.1.1)

Used during the year

Reversed during the year (Refer Note 5.1.2)

Closing balance

5.1.

1

Inventories written down to net realisable value (NRV) and recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year.

5.1.2 Allowances for obsolence and diminution in value of inventory booked in

earlier years and reversed during the year.

NOTE NO. 6 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

[Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Quoted Debt Instruments - At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI)
Government Securities

TOTAL

6.1.1 Refer Note 3.1.2 for earmarked security against Bonds maturing during the Financial Year 2024-25,




NOTE NO.7 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Amaunt in ¥)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
- Trade Receivables- Considered Good- Unsecured (Refer Note } )
7.3,7.4,7.5,7.7 and 7.8)
- Trade Receivables-Unbilled- Considered Good- Unsscured (Refer Note

7.2,7.3, 7.5, 7.6 and 7.7)
- Trade Receivables -Credit Impaired (Refer Note 7.3 and 7.5)

Less: Loss allowances for Trade Receivables (Refer Note 7.1)

TOTAL

7.1 Loss allowances for Trade Receivables

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

7.2 During the reporting year, the company has not recognised any impairment loss in respect of unbilled debtors.
7.3 Debt due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either

severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms or private

companies respectively in which any director of the Company is a partner or a

director or a member.

7.4 Debt due by subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures and others related parties of the
company.

7.5 Refer Annexure-| fo Note No-7 for Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables,

7.6 Represents receivable on account of :
Grossing up of Return on Equity
Water cess
Unbilled sale for the month of March
Saving due to refinancing & Bond [ssue Expenses
Tax adjustment including Deferred Tax Materialized
Energy Shortfall
Additional Impact of Goods and Services Tax
Foreign Exchange Rate Variation

O & M and Security Expenses-Incresae as per new Tariff Regulation 2019-24

Depreciation on account of change in project life

Wage Revision

Unbilled Debtor- Power Trading Business

Impact of Truing up 2014-19 and Petition filed for 2019-24.
Others

Total

7.7 Due to the short-term nature of the current Trade Receivables, the carrying amount of & Nil (Previous Year Z Nil) is equivalent to their

transaction price.

7.8 Trade Receivables amounting to  Nil (Previous Year ¥ Nil ) liquidated by way of discounting of bills from various banks have not been
derecognised in view of terms of the bill discounting agreement as per which the Company guarantess to compensate the banks for cradit
losses that may occur in case of default by the respective beneficiaries. Refer Note 20.1.1 with regard to liability recognised in respect of|

discounted bills.

7.9 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.




NOTE NO. 8 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A Balances with banks
With scheduled banks
i) - In Current Account 41,03,26,699 25,82,96,944
i} - In deposits account
(Deposits with original maturity of three months or less) - 2,60,00,00,000
i} - In Current Account -Other Earmarked Balances with Banks ” B
(Refer Note 8.2)
With other banks
- In current account
Bank of Bhutan = -
B Cheques, drafts on hand ¥ -
c Cash on hand (Refer Note 8.1) = .
TOTAL 41,03,26,699 2,85,82,96,944
8.1 Includes stamps on hand - -
8.2 Includes balances which are not freely available for the businsss of the
Company :-
(i) held for works being executed by Company on behalf of other agencies. = ~
Total N .
NOTE 9 : CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

A Bank Deposits for original maturity more than 3 months upto 12 months (Refer 28.11.00.000 28.11.00.000

Note 9.1) L SR
B Earmarked Balances with Banks

- Deposit -Unpaid Dividend (Refer Note 9.2 and 9.3) * -

- Deposit -Unpaid Principal/ Interast - -

- Other (Refer Note 9.4 ) - ”

TOTAL 28,11,00,000 28,11,00,000

9.1 Includes balances which are not freely available for the business of the C.
(i) held for works being executed by Company on behalf of other agencies.

ompany :




NOTE NO. 10 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Loans (including interest thereon) to Related Parties - Unsecured (Refer
Note 34(8),10.1)

Loan Receivable - (Considered Good)

Loan Receivable-Credit Impaired

Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party (Refer Note
10.3)

Sub-total

Loans to Employees {including accrued interest) (Refer Note 10,1 and
10.2)

- Considered good- Secured

- Considered good- Unsecured

- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans (Refer Note 10.4)
Sub-total
Loan to State Government in settlement of dues from customer
- Unsecured (considered good)
Sub-total
Advances to Subsidiaries / JV's

1,37,488
1,21,60,479

1,56,113
87,94,072

1,22,97,967

89,50,185

TOTAL

1,22,97,967

89,50,185

10.2
10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6 Loans are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the company.

Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are repayable on demand.

Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are without specifying any terms
or period of repayment.

Due from directors or other officers of the company.

Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Loss Allowances for doubtful Employees loans
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Reversed during the vear

Closing balance

Advance due by firms or private companies in which any Director of the
Company is a Director or member .

affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

Nil

10.7 Refer Note 24(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil
The Carrying value may be




NOTE NO. 11 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

{Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

=TI ®T m

OZ=2r =

Security Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Less : Lass Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 11.1)
Sub-total

Amount recoverable from
- Insurance Company
- Employee Benefits Trust
- Others
Sub-total
Less: Loss Allowances for Doubiful Recoverables (Refer Note 11.3)
Sub-total

Receivable from Subsidiaries | Joint Ventures
Receivable on account of Late Payment Surcharge
Less: Loss allowances for Receivable on account of Late Payment Surcharge
(Refer Note 11.4)

Sub-total
Lease Rent receivable (Finance Lease) (Refer Note 34(15))

Interest Income accrued on Bank Deposits (Refer Note 11.5)

Interest receivable on Finance lease

Interest recoverable from beneficiary

Interest Accrued on Investmeant (Bonds)

Amount Recoverable on account of Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of
India

-Principal

- Interest accrued

Interest accrued on Loan to Siate Government in settlement of dues from
customers

Derivative Mark To Market Assst

Derivative Asset Under Hedge Contract

Receivable on account of Guarantee Fee

Claim recoverable from parent company - NHPC LTD.

1,19,28,081

1,19,28,081

4,76,64,60,800

2,6032,77,010

4,76,64,60,800

4,76,64,60,800

2,60,32,77,010

| 260,3277,010 |

523,967

51,75,508

TOTAL

4,76,69,84,767

2,62,03,80,599

1.

Y

s

Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversad during the year

Closing balance

Amount recoverable - It includes amount of claim to be reimbursed by
State Taxes Department, Government of J&K to the Company in terms of
scheme “Reimbursement of State Goods and Services Taxes on
Utilization of Goods and Service in the Power Projects in the Union
Territory of Jammu and Kashmir (RSGTPP)" for development and
construction of PakalDul HEP, Kiru HEP &Kwar HEP notified by Finance
Department, Government of Jammu & Kashmir vide Notification SO. 281
dt. 17.08.2021 to the extent Suppliers' invoices are reflected in GSTR 2A
of the Company including cash paid by it on Reverse Charge Mechanism
(RCM) basis. Wherever the amount of claim to be reimbursed by State
Taxes Department, Government of J&K was booked as cost of
PPE/CWIP in earlier years, the same has also been included in the
recoverable amount after Corresponding adjustment to PPE/CWIP.
Further, an amount of Rs. §1.92 Crores of SGST Reimbursement has
been received till 31.03.2025 and the amount shown in the note 11 above
is after adjustment of amount received from State Government

4,74,58,00,784

2,58,61,69,852

11.3 Loss Allowances for Doubtful Recoverables

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

11.4 Loss Allowances for Receivables on account of late payment surcharge

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

11.5 Includes Interest accrued on balances of held for works being executed by

Company on behalf of other agencies and are not freely available for the
business of the Company.

Nil

11.6 Refer Note 34(3) of the Financial Statements with regard to assets- mortgaged! hypothecated as security.
11.7 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

Nil




NOTE NO. 12 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Current Tax Assets

Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source
B Less: Provision for Current Tax

Net Current Tax Assets (A-B)

Current Tax

Total

NOTE NO. 13.1 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amaunt in ¥)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A. Advances other than Capital Advances
a) Deposits )
- Considerad good- Unsecured
Less : Expenditure booked against demand raised by Government
Departements
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
Less : Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 13.1.1)

Sub-total
b) Advance to contractors and suppliers (Refer Note 13.1.8)

- Considered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured

— Against bank guarantes

— Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances (Refer Note 13.1.2)

Sub-total

c) Other advances - Employees
- Considered good- Unsecured (Refer Note 13.1.7)

16,38,088

16,386,086

1,03,88 952

1,34,62,082

1,03,88,952

1,34,62,032

38,000

1,983,100

Sub-total

39,000

1,93,100

d) Interest accrued
Others
- Considered Good
- Considered Doubtful
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Interest (Refer Note 13.1.3)

18,80,93,910

1,87,74,203

Sub-total

18,80,93,910

1,87,74,203

B. Others
a) Expenditure awaiting adjustment
Less: Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction (Refer
Note 13.1.4)

Sub-total

b) Losses/Assets awaiting write off sanction/pending investigation
Less: Allowancas for losses/Assets pending investigationfawaiting write off /
sanction (Refer Note 13.1.5)

Sub-total

c) Work In Progress
Construction work in prograss{on behalf of client)
Consultancy work in progress(on behalf of client)
d) Prepaid Expenditure
e) Deferred Cost on Employees Advances
f) Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets
Deferred Expenditure on Foreign Currency Fluctuation
g) Goods and Services Tax Input Receivable
Less: Allowances for Goods and Services Tax Input Receivable (Refer Note
13.1.6)

9865707
21,117,668

1,82,276

72,46,440
8,11,624

1,42,594

Sub-total

1,82,278

1,42,594

h) Others (Mainly on account of Material Issued to Contractors)

TOTAL

21,23,25,598

4,07,29,993

13.1.1 Allowances for Doubtful Deposits

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

13.1.2 Allowances for doubtful advances (Contractors and Suppliers)
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance




13.1.3 Allowances for Doubtful Accrued Interest
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the vear
Closing halance - -

13.1.4 Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction

Opening Balance #
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance = 2

13.1.5 Allowances for losses pending investigation/ awaiting write off /
sanction
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance B
13.1.6 Allowances for Goods and Services Tax Input Receivahle
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year
Closing balance G
13.1.7  Due from directors or other officers of the company. (Refer Note 34(8) of
Financial Statements).
13.1.8  Advance due by Firms or Private Companies in which any Director of the - :
Company s a Director or member, Nil Nl

13.19  Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

NOTE NO. 13.2 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

{Amount in %)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 13.2.1) 6,894,656 1,76,134
TOTAL 6,94,656 1,76,134
13.21 Property, Plant and Equipment includes Plant and equipment and Other assets (Office equipment, vehicles,furniture and fixtures,etc.)

identified for disposal due to replacement/ obsclescence of assets in the normal course of operations.




NOTE NO. 141 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT DEBIT BALANCES

(Amount in Z)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A Wage Revision as per 3rd Pay Revision Committee

Opening Balance
Adjustment during the ysar (through Statement of Profit and Loss) (Refer
Note 31)
Adjustment during the year (through Other Comprehensive Income) (Refer
Note 30.2)

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Differential Depreciation due to Moderation of Tariff
Opening Balance
Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Adjustment during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Exchange Differences on Monetary ltems
Opening Balancs

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Adjustment during the year

Reversed during the year

52,31,023
24,50,683

56,37,108
(4,06,085)

Closing halance

76,81,706

52,31,023

Interest Payment on Court/Arbitration Cases
Opening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Adjustment during the ysar

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tariff period upto 2009

Opening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)
Used during the year

Reversed during the yesar

Closing balance

Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liabilities for tariff period 2014-2019
and onwards

Opening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)

Used during the year

Reversed during the year

Closing balance

Closing Balance (A+B+C+D+E+F)

76,81,706

52,31,023

Less: Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
Add: Deferred Tax recoverable from Beneficiaries

Regulatory Deferral Account Balances net of Deferred Tax.

76,81,706

52,31,023

14.1.1

Refer Note 34 (17) and 34 (19) of Financial Statements for futher disclosures regarding Impairment

and Regulatory Deferral Account (Debit) Balances respectively.

NOTE NO. 14.2 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT CREDIT BALANCES

(Amount in %)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

MAT Credit to be passed on to beneficiaries
Opening Balance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)

Used during the year (Refer Note-31)
Reaversed during the year (Refer Note 31)

Closing balance

14.2.1

Refer Note 34 (19) of Financial Statements for futher disclosure regarding Regulatory Deferral (Credit) Account Balances .




CVPPL

NOTE : 15.1 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Authorized Share Capital (Par value per share Rs, 8000000000 80000000000 5200000000 52000000000
10)
Equity shares issued, subscribed and fully paid (Par 5630011288 56300112860 4450341286 44503412860
value per share Rs. 10)
15.1.1 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:-
Opening Balance 4450341286 44,50,34,12,860 3692391286 36,92,39 12,860
Add: No. of shares/Share Capital issued/ 1179670000 11,79,67,00,000 757950000 7,57,95,00,000
subscribed during the year
Less:-Buyback of shares during the year - - - -
Closing Balance 5630011286 56,30,01,12,860 4450341288 44,50,34,12,860
15.1.2 The Company has issued only one kind of equity shares with voting rights proportionate to the share holding of the shareholders. These
voting rights are exercisable at meeling of shareholders. The holders of the equity shares are also entitled to receive dividend as declared
from time to time. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.
15.1.3 Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent specifying the number of shares hald : -
Shareholders As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Number In (%) Number In (%)
i) NHPC Limited 33301012886 59.15% 2404111288 54.02%
11) JKSPDC Limited 2298910000 40.85% 2046230000 45,98%
Total 5830011286 100.00% 4450341286 100.00%
15.1.4 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2025 -
S.No |Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares |% Change during
the year
NHPC Limited 3330101286 58.15% 5.13%
JKSPDC Limited 2299910000 40.85% -5.13%
16.1.5 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2024 -
S.No |Promoter Name MNo. of Shares % of Total Shares % Change during
the year
NHPC Limited 2404111286 54.02% 1.28%
JKSPDC Limited 2046230000 45.98% -1.28%




CVPPL

NOTE NO.15.2 OTHER EQUITY

(Amount in ¥)

As at 31st March,

As at 31st March,

PARTICULARS 2025 2024
(i) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance -
Closing Balance i =
(i) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
As per last Balance Sheet 2,29,16,00,000 £,24,69,00,000
Add: Received During The Year 9,50,51,00,000 7,62,42,00,000
Less: Shares Issued during the Year 11,79,67,00,000 7,57,95,00,000
As at Balance Sheet date - 2,29,16,00,000
(iii} Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance .
Closing Bal P
(iv) Bond Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance & g
Less: Transfer to Surplus/Retained Earnings - -
Closing Balance & 5
(v) General Reserve
OCpening Balance G
Closing Balance -
(vi) Surplus! Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 89,83 46,396 79,15,27 881
Add: Profit during the year -12,48,11,242 10,68,18,515
Add: Other Comprehensive Income during the year
Add: Transfer from Bond Redemption Reserve
Less: Dividend (Final and Interim)
Closing Balance 77,35,35,154 89,83,46,396
(vii) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)-Debt Instruments
Opening Balance =
Add: Change in Fair value of FVTOCI {Net of Tax)
Closing Balance . -
(viii) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)-Equity Instruments
Qpening Balance -
Add: Change in Fair value of FVTOCI (Net of Tax)
Closing Balance -
(ix) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI}-Cost of Hedge Reserve
Opening Balance -
Add: Change in Fair value of FVTOCI (Net of Tax)
Closing Balance al
TOTAL 77,35,35,154 3,18,99,46,396

16.2.1

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(i) General Reserve : The General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained eamings for appropriation purposes,
as lhe same is created by transfer from one component of equity to another.The same will be utilised as per the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013

(i) Surplus/ Retained Earnings : Surplus/ Retained earnings generally represent the undistributed profit/ amount of accumulated earnings

of the company and includes remeasurement gain/ losses on defined benefit obligations.



NOTE NO. 16,1 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS (Amount in T)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
At Amortised Cost
A - Secured Loans
-Bonds W 5
-Term Loan
- from Banks - -
- from Other (Financial Institutions) 15,77,56,43 891 -
B - Unsecured Loans
-Bonds -
~Term Loan
- from Bank = -
- from Government of India (Subordinate Debts)
(Refer Note 16.1.2) 8,81,97,52,405 6,09,87,31,230
- from Cther (in Foreign Currency) - -
c Loan from Parent Company
- Term Loan -Unsecured . =
TOTAL 24,59,53,96,206 6,09,87,31,230
16.1,1  Debt Covenants : Refer Note 33(3) with regard to capital Management.
16.1.2  1.Term Lean-From Government of India (Subordinate Dehts) is net of fair valuation since these loans carry interest rate which is lower than
the prevailing market rate. Total Subordinate Debts outstanding as on 31.3.2025 is ¥ 2196,39,00,000/- (Previous Year ¥ 1627,71,00,000/-).
This includes current maturity amounting to ¥ Nil (Previous Year # Nil).
16.1.3
16.1.3.A |Particulars of redemptions , repayments and securities
[A). TERM LOANS - From Banks {Secured)
1 (i) REC (for Kiru HEP) 6,31,57,00,000
(Loan for Kiru HEP, sanctoned @ 8.60% p.a. interest rate (Internal
Benchmark Rate/card rate with fixed rebate of 255 bps) with annual reset,
currently at 8.35% per annum. The principle shall be repaid in 72 quarterly
instalments commencing from the end of first quarter after one year
meratorium period from COD. The interest shall be paid on monthly basis on
outstanding loan amount. The lean shall be secured by way of creation of
charge on movable and immovable assets of Kifu HEP on pari-passu basis.
(refer note 34(8)).
2 (i) PFC {for Kiru HEP) 3,64,66,17.870 -
(Loan for Kiru HEP, sanclioned @ 8.860% p.a. interest raie (Internal
Benchmark Rate/card rate with fixed rebate of 255 bps) with annual reset,
currently at 8.35% per annum. The principle shall be repaid in 72 quarterly
instalments commencing from the end of first gquarter after one year
moratorium period from COD. The interest shall be paid on menthly basis on
outstanding loan amount). The loan shall be secured by way of creation of
charge on movable and immovable assets of Kiru HEP on pari-passu basis.
{refer note 34(8)).
3 {iii) REC (For Pakal Dul HEP) 5,82,55,00,000 -
(sanctioned @ 9.20% p.a. ( Internal Benchmark Ratelcard rate with fixed
rebate of 170 bps) with annual reset, The principle shall be repaid in 59
quarterly instalments commencing from the end of first quarter after 03 months
moratorium period from COD).The interest shall be paid on monthly basis on
outstanding loan amount. The loan shall be secured by way of creation of
charge on movable and immovable assels of Pakal Dul HEP on pari-passu
basis. (refer note 34(8))
Total TERM LOANS - Banks {Secured) 15,78,78,17,870 e
Less Current Maturities of Principal - -
Less Current Maturities of interest accrued but not due 1.21.73,979 -
Total TERM LOANS - Banks (Secured) (A) 15,77,56,43,891 -
{B}. Term Loan-From Cther parties- Governmant (Unsecurad)
Total Term Loan -Government (Unsecured) 8,81,97,52 405 6,08,87.31,230
(Subordinate Debt from Government of India for Pakal Dul HEP (Repayment
to be started from 8th year of complelion of project and continue till 19th year
i.e. from September 2034 along with interest @ 1% p.a to be charged after
completion of the project).
Less Current Maturities of Principal = u
Less Current Maturities of interest accrued but not due > "
Total Term Loan - Government (Unsecured) (B) 8,81,97,52,405 6,09,87,31,230
Grand Total (A+B) 24,59,53,96,296 6,09,87,31,230
1.3.B
e Particulars of security
16.1.4 Maturity Analysis of Borrowings

The table below summarises the malurity profile of the company's bomrowings
and lzase liability based on contractual payments (Undiscounted Cash Flows)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years

More than 5 Years

7.47.42,23,823
4,58,21,59,510
25,68,31,60,558

16,27,71,00,000

TOTAL

37,73,95,43,891

16,27,71,00,000




NOTE NO. 16.2 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILITIES

{Amount in )

16.2.1

16.2.2

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34(16)(A)) 68 77.735 21,12,329
TOTAL 68,77,735 21,12,329

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's borrowings
and lease liability based on contractual payments (Undiscounted Cash Flows)

As at 31st March, 2025

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024
More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years 70,17,524 8,08028
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years

More than 5 Years

TOTAL 70,17,524 8,08,026
Movement in Lease Liability As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance 90,58,702 1,49,39,319
Addition in lease liabilities 1,17,19,612 42,358,481
Finance Cost accrued during the year 4,90,142 7.38,321
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 76,17,582 1,08,55,419
Closing Balance 1,36,50,874 90,58,702
Current maturities of lease obligations (Refer Note 20.2) 67,73,139 69,46,373
Long term maturities of lease obligations 68,77,735 21,12,329

NOTE NO. 16.3 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILTIES - OTHERS

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Payable towards Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of India

- Principal
Retention Money
Lizbility against capital works/supplies
Payable for Late Payment Surcharge
Payable for Financial Guarantee
Derivative Mark To Market Liability

Derivative Liability-Hedged Contract
Currency Option Premium Payable

3,62 935

10,32,21

TOTAL

3,62,935

10,32,211

16.3.1

Maturity Analysis of Note No-16.3

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the depositsi/ratention
money based on contractual payments (Undiscounted Cash Flows) :

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Years 4,27,648 11,80,627
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years

More than 5 Years

TOTAL 4,27,648 11,80,627




NOTE NO. 17 PROVISIONS - NON CURRENT

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

A. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i) Provision for Long term Benefits {Provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation)

Opening Balance

Additions during the year

Amount used during the year

Amount reversed during the year

14,40,04,599
3,52,83,784

11,92,11,315
2,47,93,284

Closing Balance

17,92,68,383

14,40,04,589

B. OTHERS
i) Provision For Committed Capital Expenditure
Cpening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

ii) Provision For Livelihood Assistance

Qpening Balance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the yesar
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

ili) Provision-Others
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

TOTAL

17,92,68,383

14,40,04,599

17.1 Information about nature and purpose of Provisions is given in Note 34 (18) of Financial Statements.

NOTE NO. 18 NON CURRENT - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant and Equipments, Right of Use, Investment Property and
Intangible Assets. .
b) Financial Assets at FVTOCI
¢) Other ltems
Deferred Tax Liability

Less:-Set off of Deferred Tax Assets pursuant to set off provisions

a)

a) Provision for employee benefit scheme, doubtful debts, inventory and others

b) Other ltems
c) MAT credit entitiement
Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)




NOTE NO. 19 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Income received in advance-Advance Against Depraciation
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Liabilities

Deferred Income from Foreign Currency Fluctuation Account (Refer Note
18.2)

Grants in aid from Government (Refer Note 19.1)

14,67,55,88,730

10,77,69,63,744

TOTAL

14,67,55,88,730

10,77,69,63,744

19.1 GRANTS IN AID FROM GOVERNMENT

Opening Balance (Current and Non Current) 10,77,69,63,744 8,67,26,47,720
Add: Received during the year 3,89,86,24,986 4,10,43,16,024
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 24.2)

Closing Balance (Current and Non Current) (Refer Note 19.1.1) 14,67,55,88,730 10,77,69,63,744
Grants in Aid from Government-(Current)- (Refer Note No-21) " s
Grants in Aid from Government-(Non-Current) 14,67,55,88 730 10,77,69,63,744

19.1.1 Grant includes:-

(i

Fair value gain an Subordinate Debt received from Government of India for
Pakal Dul HEP accounted as Grant in Aid

14,33,71,55,730

10,77,69,63,744

(i)

Grant in Aid recsived from MOP in relation to budgstary suppoart far Enabling
infrastructure facility of Kiru HEP.

33,84,33,000

- Term Loan -Unsecured

Total 14,67,55,88,730 10,77,69,63,744
NOTE NO. 20.1 BORROWINGS - CURRENT (Amount in ¥)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
A Loan Repayable on Demand
From Banks-Secured - -
B Other Loans
From Bank-Secured L
Cc Current maturities of long term debt
- Bonds-Secured Pl &
- Term Loan -Banks-Secured -
- Term Loan -Financial Institutions-Secured =
- Term Loan -Banks-Unsecured -
- Bonds-Unsecured - %
- Unsecured-From Government (Subordinate Debts) - -
- Other-Unsecured (in Foreign Currency) = =
Sub Total (C) -
D Loan from Parent Company

NOTE NO. 20.2 CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILTIES

TOTAL

(Amount in 3)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34(15)) 67,73,139 69,46 373
TOTAL 67,73,139 69,46,373




NOTE NO. 20.3 TRADE PAYABLE - CURRENT

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 20.3.1) 1,86,73,598 1,29,25,239
Total cutstanding dues of Creditors other than micro and small enterprises

87,2080
(Refer Note 20.3.3) SRR ARTERR
TOTAL 6.13,95,501? 4,16,48,148

20.3.1 Disclosure regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise :-

Qutstanding Liabilities towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 1,86,73,588 1,28,25,239

Disclosure of amount payable to Micra and Small Enterprises is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status
of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2008 (the Act). Additional disclosure as required

under Section 22 of the Act is given under Note No.34(15) of Financial Statements.

20.3.2 Refer Annexure-| o Note No-20.3 for Ageing schedule of Trade Payables.

20.3.3 Tolal outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises includes Rs. Nil (Pevious Year Rs. Nil) due to Parent Company.

20.3.4 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.




Annexure-l fo Note No-20.3 - Ageing of Trade Payables

As at 31st March 2025

Trade Payble due and outstanding for following period from due
; date of payment
P
B Unbilled Not D Less than 1 More than 3
RS hitede year 1-2 years 2-3 years Years Total
(iy MSME 18673598 18673598
(i) Others 38138219 1439522 2641884 149977 351300 42721902
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME 0
(iv) Disputed dues-Others 0
Total 56812817 0 1439522 2641884 149977 351300 61385500
As at 31st March 2024
Trade Payble due and outstanding for following period from due
. date of payment
Porea Unbilled Not D Less than 1 More than 3
RE Sl year 1-2 years 2-3 years Years Total

(iy MSME 7789376 8190 5127673 12925239
(ii) Others 11457352 0 16404621 583302 275634 28720809
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME 0
(iv) Disputed dues-Others 0
Total 19246728 8190 21532294 583302 275634 0 41646148




NOTE NO. 20.4 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Bond application money

Liability against capital works/supplies other than Micro and Small Enterprises
(Refer Note 20.4.5)

Deposits

Liability against capita! works/supplies-Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer
Note 20.4.1)

Liability against Corporate Social Responsibility

Interest accrued but not due 'on borrowings (Refer Note 20.4.3)

Interest accrued and due on borrowings (Refer Note 20.4.4)
Payable towards Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of india
- Principal

- Interest

Earnest Money Deposit/ Retention Money

Due to Subsidiaries/Parent

Liability for share application money -to the extent refundable
Unpaid dividend (Refer Note 20.4.2)

Unpaid Principal/ Interest (Refer Note 20.4.2)

Payable for Late Payment Surcharge

Payable for Financial Guarantees

Derivative Mark To Market Liability

Derivative Liability-Hedged Contract

Currency Option Premium Payable

Payable to Employees

Payable to Ex-Employees

Payable to Others

4,53,65,40,488

445729

28,50,814
1,21,73,979

83,34,31,664
10,43,34,287

28,93,853

6,08 444

2,49,70,53,525
17,538,713
23,76,317

54,24,05,339
9,34,36,112

31,22,745

4,894,026

TOTAL

5,58,22,79,388

3,14,08.41,777

20.4.1 Disclosure regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise :-
QOutstanding Liabilities towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
QOutstanding Interest towards Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

4,45729

20.4.3 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings includes interest amounting to Rs. Nil payable to Parent Company.

20.4.4 Interest accrued and due on borrowings includes interest amounting to Rs. Nil payable ta Parent Company.

20.4.6 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.

17,563,713

Disclosure of amount payable to Micro and Small Enterprises is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status
of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the Act). Additional disclosure as required
under Section 22 of The Act is given under Note No.34(15) of Financial Statements.

20.4.2 "Unpaid Dividend" and "Unpaid Principal/ Interest” includes the amounts which have not been claimed by the investors/holders of the equity
shares/bonds. During the year, unpaid dividend of ¥ Nil ( Previous Year  Nil) has been paid to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
There is no amount due for payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

20.4.5 Liability against capital works/supplies other than Micro and Small Enterprises includes Rs 6,10,02,156/- Payable to Parent Company.

NOTE NO. 21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Income received in advance (Advance agzinst depreciation)
Deferred Income from Foreign Currency Fluctuation Account
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Liabilities

Unspent amount of deposit/agency basis works

Water Usage Charges Payables

Statutory dues payables

Contract Liabilities-Deposit Works

Contract Liabilities-Project Management/ Consultancy Work
Provision toward amount recoverable in respect of Project Management/
Consultancy Work

Advance from Customers and Others

Grants in aid-from Government (Refer Note No-19.1)

31,66,55,704

20,57,08,381

TOTAL

31,66,55,704

20,57,06,361

21.1 Refer Note 34(12) of the Financial Staterments with regard to confirmation of balances.




NOTE NO. 22 PROVISIONS - CURRENT (Amount in T)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

A, PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i) Provision for Long term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation)
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

38,49,230
4593413
38,49,230

32,42,664
38,49,230
32,42,684

Closing Balance

45,93,413

38,49,230

Provision for Wage Revision

Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Arnount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

Less: Advance paid

Closing Bal Net of Advance

iiiy Provision for Performance Related Pay/incentive
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Armount used during the year
Amount reversed during the yvear

B,92,63,867
6,18,80,050
7.07,15,576

8,71.21,653
6,70,58,752
8,49,01,262

13,276

Closing Balance

6,04,28,341

6,92,63,867

Less:-Advance Paid

7,43,48,299

2,16,270

Closing Balance Net of Advance

4,60,80,042

5,80,47,507

Iv) Provision for Superannuation | Pension Fund
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

v} Provision For Wage Revision - 3rd Pay Revision Committee
Opening Balance '
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

Provision For Employee Remuneration-Pay Anomaly
Opening Balance

Additions during the year

Amount used during the year

Amount reversed during the year

v

14,18,84,300

Closing Balance

14,19,94,300

OTHERS

Provision For Tariff Adjustment
Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

Provision For Committed Capital Expenditure
Opening Balance

Additions during the year

Amount used during the year

Amount reversed during the year

Unwinding of discount

1,27 49,14,200

1,01,85,73,000
30,83,41,200
5,00,00,000

Closing Balance

1,27,48,14,200

1,27,49,14,200

iiiy Provision for Restoration expenses of Insured Assels

Opening Balance

Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance

iv) Provision For Livellhood Assistance
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Unwinding of discount

Closing Balance

v) Provision in respect of arbitration award/ court cases
Opening Balance
Additions during the year
Amount used during the year
Amoaunt reversed during the year

Closing Balance

vi) Provision - Others
Opening Balance

16,85,88,663

Additions during the year

Amount used during the year -

Amount reversed during the year =

Closing Balance 16,85,88,663 E

TOTAL

1,63,61,70,618

1,34,78,11,027

22.1 Information about nature and purpose of Provisions is given in Note 34 (18) of Financial Statements.




NOTE NO. 23 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance 8,99,60,109 13,45,34,873
Additions during the year 2,69,72,165 8,99,60,109
Amount adjusted during the year 8,99,60,109 13,45,34,872
Amount used during the year
Amount reversed during the year
Closing Balance (A) 2,69,72,165 8,99,60,109
Less: Current Advance Tax including Tex Deducted at Source (B) 5,86,92,196 9,10,63,092
Net Current Tax Liabilities (A-B) (3,17,20,031) (11,02,983)
(Disclosed under Note No-4 above) 3,17,20,031 11,02,983

TOTAL




NOTE NO. 241 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

O m

Operating Revenue

Sales

Sale of Power

Revenue recognised cut of advance against depreciation
Performance based Incentive

Sub-total (i)
Less:
Sales adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Rate Variation
Tariff Adjustments
Regulated Power Adjustment
Income from generation of electricity — precommissioning
(Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction) (Refer Note 32)
Rebate to customers

Sub-total (ii)

Sub - Total (A) = (i-ii)

Income from Finance Lease (Refer Note 34(15))
Income from Operating Lease (Refer Note 34(15))

Revenue From Contracts, Project Management and Consultancy Works

Contract Income
Revenue from Project management/ Consultancy works

Sub - Total (D)

Revenue from Power Trading
Sale of Power

Less:-Rebate to customers

Trading Margin (Refer Note 24.1.4)

Sub - Total (E)

Sub-Total-l (A+B+C+D+E)

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

Income From Sale of Self Generated VERS/REC
Income on account of generation based incentive (GBI)
Interest from Beneficiary States -Revision of Tariff

Sub-Total-ll

TOTAL (I+11)




NOTE NO. 24.2 OTHER INCOME

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

A)

B)

C)

Interest Income
- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Non Taxable

- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Taxable

- Interest - Government Securities (8.5% tax free bonds issued by
the State Governmeants)

- Loan to Government of Arunachal Pradesh
- Deposit Account
- Employee's Loans and Advances (Net of Rebate)
- Advance to coniractors
- Unwindling of Fair Value Loss on Financial Assels
- Others
Dividend Income
- Dividend from subsidiaries (Refer Note 34.8)
- Dividend - Others
Other Non Operating Income (Net of Expenses directly attributable to
such income)
Late payment surcharge
Realization of Loss Due To Business Interruption
Profit on sale of investmeants
Profit on sale of Assets (Net)
Income from Insurance Claim
Liabilities/ Impairment Allowances/ Provisions not required written back (Refer
Note 24.2.1)
Material Issued to contractor
(i) Sale on account of material issued {o contractors
(ii) Less: Cost of material issued to contractors on recoverable basis
(iii) Net: Adjustment on account of material issued to contractor
Amortization of Grant in Aid (Refer Note 19.1)
Exchange rate variation (Net)
Mark to Market Gain on Derivative
Income on account of Guarantee Fee
Others

Sub-total
Add/(Less). C.O. Income Allocation
Add/(Less): Regional Office Income Allocation

Sub-total
Less: Transferred lo Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Transferred to Advance/ Deposit from Client/Contractess and against
Deposit Works
Less: Transfer of other income to grant

Total

10,71,68,487
25,00,397
43,20,08,108

2,04,29,168
56,22,07,160

35,74,38,449
1,21,925
37,40,25,767

3,03,89,708
76,19,75,849

56,22,07,160
45,32,93,941

76,19,75,849
40,44,35,748

10,89,13,219

35,75,40,100

24.2.1 Detail of Liabilities/Impairment Allowances/Provisions not required

written back
&) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Employees Loans
b} Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Advances 1o Contractor/ Supplier
¢) Allowances for Bad 8 Doubtful Loan to State Government
d) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Capital Advances
e) Allowances for Obsolescence & Diminution in Value of Inventories
f) Allowances for trade receivables
g) Allowances for Bad & Doubtful Deposits
h) Allowances for loan which have significant increase in credit risk
i} Allowances for doubtful recoverables
j) Allowances for Doubtful Accrued Interest
k) Allowances for project expenses awaiting write off sanction

1} Allowances for losses pending investigation/awaiting write off / sanction
m) Provision for Long Term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of acturial valuation)

n) Provision for PRP [ Incentive /Productivity Linked Incentive

o) Provision for tariff adjustment
p) Provision for Committed Capital Expenditure

q) Provision for Livelihood Assistance
r) Provision for Restoration expenses of insured Asseis

s) Provision for 3rd PRC
t) Others

TOTAL




NOTE NO. 25.1 Purchase of Power - Trading

{(Amount in ¥)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Purchase of Power
Less : Rebate from Supplier

Total

NOTE NO. 25.2 GENERATION EXPENSES

{(Amount in T)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Water Usage Charges
Consumption of stores
Sub-total

Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Total

NOTE NO. 26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Amaunt in ¥)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Salaries and Wages

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 26.2 and 26.3)
Staff welfare expenses

Leave Salary & Pension Contribution

93,89,48,203
11,89,38,317
9,35,97,869

81,25,82,938
10,08,43,148
8,13,81,523

Sub-total 1,15,14,84,389 99,48,07,609
Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation - -
Add/(Less): Regicnal Office Expenses Allocation - -
Sub-total 1,15,14,84,389 99,48,07,609
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction 1,02,54,99,005 88,90,02,024
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works - -
Total 12,59,85,384 10,58,05,585

26.1 Disclosure about leases towards residential accomadation for employees are given in Note 34 (15) of Financial Statements.

26.2|Contribution to provident and other funds include contributions:

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

116 " Leases".

1) towards Employees Provident Fund 5,16 83,597 5,08,71,747
i) towards Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation/New Pension 3.19,62,742 3,66.53,087
Scheme

26.3 Salary and wages includes expenditure on short term leases as per IND AS- = 0




NOTE NO. 27 FINANCE COSTS

(Amount in )

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

EARTIGULARS 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A Interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Bonds - -

Term loan 40,12,50,603 -

Foreign loan = -

Government of India loan - -

Short Term Loan 1,38,90,411 -

Cash credit facilities /WCDL - -

Other interest charges & _

Lease Liabilities 4,980,142 7,368,321
59,44,13,161 31,563,80,080

Unwinding of discount-Government of India Loan

B Other Borrowing Cost
Call spread/ Coupon Swap/Hedging Pemium
Bond issuef service expenses
Commitment fee
Guarantee fee on foreign loan
Other finance charges
Unwinding of interest-Provision & Financial Liablities

translation
Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost

Less: Transferred to Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets

D Others
Interest on Arbitration/ Court Cases
Interest to beneficiary

D Interest on Income Tax
Total (A+ B+ C+D)
Add/(Less). C.0O. Expenses Allocation
Add/(Less); Regional Office Expenses Allocation
TOTAL
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works

Total

Sub-total

Sub-total

Applicable net (gain)/ loss on Foreign currency transactions and

Sub-total

Sub-total

1,01,00,44,317

31,61,16,401

37,00,000

38,20,340
2,537,841 97,974
40,58,181 37,97,974
= 4,09,651

1,01,41,02,498

32,03,24,026

32,03,24,026

1,01,41,02,498
1,01,39,97,286 31,97,57,384
1,05,112 5,66,642

NOTE NQ. 28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

{Amount in )

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Depreciation -Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation-Right of use Assets
Amortization -Intangible Assets

Depreciation adjustment on account of Foreign Exchange Rate Variation

(Refer Note 19 and 5(D)(iii)

Add/(Less). C.O. Expenses Allocation

Add/(Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation
Add/(Less): Depreciation allocated to/from other units

Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works

Total

Sub-total

852,968,410 7,39,48,962
9,82,67,139 10,41,27,150
36,265,820 24,680,788
18,71,90,369 18,05,36,900
17,89,73,376 17,26,54,018
82,16,893 78,82,882




NOTE NO. 29 OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in %)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Direct Expenditure on Contract, Project Management and Consultancy
Works

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
- Building
- Machinery
- Others
Rent (Refer Note 29.3)
Hire Charges
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Security expenses
Electricity Charges
Travelling and Conveyance
Expenses on vehicles
Telephone, telex and Postage
Advertisement and publicity
Entertainment and hospitality expenses
Printing and stationery
Legal Expenses
Consultancy charges - Indigenous
Consultancy charges - Foreign
Audit expenses (Refer Note 29.2)
Expenses on compensatory afforestation/ catchment area treatment/
environmental expenses/development expenses
Expenses on work of downstream protection works
Expenditure on land not belonging to company
Loss on Assets (Net)
Loss on Sale of Investment
Losses out of insurance claims
Donation
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 34(13))
Community Development Expenses
Directors' Sitting Fees
Compensation on Arbitration/ Court Cases
Expenditure on Self Generated VER'S/REC
Exchange rate variation (Net)
Training Expenses
Petition Fee /Registration Fee /Other Fee — To CERC/RLDC/RPC/IEX/PXIL

Operational/Running Expenses of Kendriya Vidyalay
Operational/Running Expenses of Other Schools
Operational/Running Expenses of Guest House/Transit Hostel
Operating Expenses of DG Set-Other than Residential

Fair Value Loss on Financial Assets

Sale of Debt instrument-Reclassification adjustment from OCI
Change in Fair Value of Derivatives

Other general expenses

Sub-total
Addf{Less): C.0. Expensas Allocation
Add/(Less). Regional Office Expenses Allocation

Sub-total
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works
Less: Transfer to General Reserve for Expenses on Buyback

Sub-total (i)

PROVISIONS/ IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE

Loss allowance for trade receivables

Loss Allowance for Expected Credit Loss -Trade Receivables
Allowance for Bad and doubtful advances / deposits

Allowance for Bad and doubtful claims

Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Loan

Allowance for Doubtful Interest

Allowance for stores and spares/ Construction stores

Allowance for Shortage in store & spares provided

Allowance against diminution in the value of investment

Allowance on Intangible Assets

Allowance for Project expenses

Allowance for losses pending investigation awaiting write off sanction
Allowance for Diminution in value of Inventory of Self Generated VER's Provided

for
Allowance for catchment area treatment plan

Others

Sub-total
Add/{Less): C.0. Expenses Allocation
Addi{Less}. Regional Office Expenses Allocation

Sub-total

Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works
Sub-total (ii)

Total (i+ii)

14,20,98,213 10,64,81,951
- 1,700
1,62,56,149 1,47,28,253
7,42,36,719 3,34,54,126
3,05,02,574 2,50,20,200
1,65,38,591 B86,13,859
8,56,225 7,71,180
2,75,42,603 3,08,20 436
1,10,52,990 1,08,73,404
2,11,69,870 1,88,10,152
84,99,291 88,00,757
2,85,91,144 2,11,62,088
26,26,108 22 47,747
12,27,961 7,03,455
48,58,453 60,27,019
16,03,921 12,684,712
28,80,43,251 29,90,33,603
8,26,000 5,80,000
2,82,24,033 46,03 49,144
3,07,11,882 16,87,56,238
15,68,405 13,64,504
. 39,155
48,37 951 34,57,000
24,50,683 4,70,077
37,92,960 11,21,641
10,56,422 95,738
7,18,054 1,72,409
3,23,47,084 2,07,71,009
78,02,37,825

1,24,55,21,747

78,02,37,825

1,24,55,21,747

71,25,45,281 1,19,60,61,987
34,38,887 32,84 857
6,42,53,647 4,61,74,803
1,06,41,843 -
1,06,41,843 -
1,06,41,843 -
1,06,41,843 -
7,48,95,490 4,61,74,903




2941

20.2

29.3
0}
(ii)
(iii)

NOTE NO. 30.1

Disclosure about leases are given in Note 34 (15) of Financial Statements.

(Amount in ¥)

Detail of audit expenses are as under: -

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

i) Statutory auditors

As Auditor

- Audit Fees

- Tax Audit Fees

In other Capacity

- Taxation Matters

- Limited Review

- Company Law Matters

- Management Services

- Other Mattersfservices

- Reimbursement of expenses
ii) Cost Auditors

- Audit Fees

- Reimbursement of expenses
iii) Goods and Service Tax (GST) Auditors
- Audit Fess

- Reimbursement of expenses
Total Audit Expenses

Rent includes the following expenditure as per IND AS-116 " Leases".
Expenditure on short-term leases other than lease term of one month or less

Expenditurs on long term lease of low-value assets
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

4,72,000 4,72,000
3,54,000 s

. 1,18,000

8,26,000 5,90,000

6,60,63,072 2,67,33,116

81,73,647 67,21,010

(Amount in %)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

Current Tax
Current Tax on Profits for the year
Adjustment Relating To Earlier years

2,68,72,165

8,99,60,109
(74,621)

Total Current Tax expenses

2,69,72,165

8,98,85,488

Deferred Tax

Decrease /(increase) in Deferred Tax Assets

- Relating to origination and raversal of tempaorary differences
- Relating to change in tax rate

- Adjustments in respact of deferred tax of earlier years

- Adjustments on account of MAT credit entitlement
Increase/ (decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities

- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
- Relating to change in tax rate

- Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of earlier vears

Total Deferred Tax Expenses (benefits)

Net Deferred Tax

Total

2,69,72,165

8,98,85,488




NOTE NO. 30.2 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amount in T)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

(i) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations

Less: Income Tax on remeasurement of the post employment defined benafit
obligations

Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations (net
of Tax)

Less:-Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances in respect of tax on
defined benefit obligations

-Maovement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances-Remeasurement of post
employment defined benefit obligations

Less: Impact of Tex on Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Sub total (a)

(b) Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI
Less: Income Tax on above item

Sub total (b)

Total (i)=(a)+(b)

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Changes in the fair value of debt investmeants at FVTOCI
Less: Income Tax on above item

Sub total (a)

(b) Cost of Hedge Reserve
Less: Income Tax on above item

Sub total (b)

Total (il)=(a)+(b)

Total =(i+iij

NOTE NO. 31 Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

{(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

(i) Wage Revision as per 3rd Pay Revision Committee
(i) Depreciation due to moderation of Tariff
(iii) Exchange Differences on Monetary Items
(iv) Interest Payment on Court/Arbitration Cases
(v) Adjustment against Deferred Tax Recoverable for tanff period upto 2008
(vi) Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liabilities for tariff period 2014-2019 and
onwards
(vil) Regulatory Liability on account of recognition of MAT Credit

(4.06,085)

TOTAL (i)+ (i) (iii+(iv)+ (V) + (vi)+(vii)

24,50,683

(4,06,085)

Impact of Tax on Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Less: Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
Add: Deferred Tax recoverable from Beneficiaries

Total

24,50,683

(4,06,085)

31.1 Refer Note 14.1 and 14.2 of Financial Statements.



NOTE NO. 32 EXPENDITURE ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONSTRUCTION (EAC) FORMING PART OF CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS FOR THE YEAR

(Amount in )

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2025

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

GENERATION EXPENSE
Water Usage Charges
Consumption of stores
Sub-total

EMPLOYEE BEMNEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Leave Salary and Pension Contribution

Sub-total

FINANCE COST
Interest on : (Refer Note 2,2.3)
Bonds
Foreign loan
Term loan
Lease Liabilities

Cash credit facilities AMWCDL
Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost
Loss on Hedging Transactions
Bond issue/ service expenses
Commitrment fee
Guarantee fee on loan
Other finance charges
Transfer of expenses to EAC- Interest on loans from Central Government-
adjustment on account of effective interest
Transfer of expenses to EAC-Interest on security deposit/ retention money-
adjustment on account of effective interest
Transfer of expenses 1o EAC-commilted capital expenses-adjustment for time
value
Sub-total

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Sub-total
OTHER EXPENSES *

Repairs And Maintenance :
-Building
-Machinery
-Others
Rent and Hire Charges
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Security expenses
Electricity Charges
Travelling and Corveyance
Expenses on vehicles
Telephone, ielex and Postage
Advertisement and publicity
Entertainment and hospitality expenses
Printing and stationery
Legal and Consultancy charges:
- Indigenous
- Foreign
Expenses on compensatory afforestation/ catchment area treatment/
environmental expenses/ development expenses
Expenses on works of downsiream protection works (Refer Note 28.4)
Expenditure on land not belonging to company
Assets/ Claims written off
Land Acquisition and Rehabilitation Expendilure
Losses on sale of assets
Other general expenses
Exchange rate variation (Debit)
Sub-total

PROVISIONS

CORPORATE OFFICE/REGIONAL OFFICE EXPENSES
Other Income

Other Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Finance Cost

Provisions

Sub-total

Sub-total
LESS: RECEIPTS AND RECOVERIES
Income from generation of electricity — precommissioning
Interest on loans and advances
Profit on sale of assets
Exchange rate variation (Credit)
Provision/Liability not required written back
Miscellaneous receipts
Transfer of fair value gain to EAC- security deposit
Transfer of Income to EAC - MTM Gain on Derivatives
Transfer of fair value gain to EAC - on provisions for committed capital
expenditure

Sub-total

1,80,72,659 55,69,97,966
7,83,16,497 5,97,28,981
5,79,52,538 4,80,76,136
75,53,41,694 67,48,03,103
41,51.41,014 2
2,58,316 320,474
41,53,59,330 3,20,474
38,02,640 37,00,000
59,44,13,161 31,53,80,080
1,84,871 52,762

1,01,38,00,002 31,94,53,216
18,23,28,057 15,73,85,987
16,23,28,057 15,73,85,997
9,89,03,030 6,97,74,692
2 1,700
1,36,52,104 1,18,28,345
9,98 34,925 5,73,39,332
25.42,911 6,368,549
2,11,459 1,985,643
1,69,51,018 2,09,56,410
58,87,055 51,55,238
8361166 89,965,436
38,656,494 50,31,542
1,63,20,960 1,35,39,962
53,508 12,25,864
28,20,112 37,70,743
28,69,01,806 29,80,38,561
2,82,24,033 46,0349,144
3,07,11,882 16,67,56,238
- 2,123

330,719 5,33,345
2,14,83,644 1,30,22,357

§3,71,56,627

1,13,92,56,234

(36,95 877)
7,53,88,664
27,01,57,311
1,66,45,319
197,384

(3,62,289)
5,68,05,753
21,4198 921
1,52,68,021
304,068

35,86,92,801

28,62,14,464

43,20,29,040

1,7543,972
25,052

37,40,41,391

3,00,10,894
21,165

44,96 98,064

40,40,73,450

TOTAL (A+B+C+D+E+F+G-H) (Refer Note 2.2}

247,77, 21,117

2,17,30,39,664




SRE'ZY'PE'LL'S 4 = £89'5F'LE"96'S = = SIASSY [EIOUBULY |EJOL
szL'Lz'im'al's - - CoP'E0'L0'LY'S - - S]1assy [BloUeLL] JBLINY |B)O]
- o (31 (1sauaju Buipnou sajqeaansy sseaT) siauio ()

= Li l1enuoy palipal Japui 1958y BAlBALBA) S48UI0 (1A)
2 » L {1assy JaWIEN O} B BAEALRQ) SIS0 (1A)
665'0R'E0'ZD'E 194 PR'E9'9L'Y bl (enuos) palipaH apun 1955y SAIBAUSQ PUR 1855Y
W.LIN saEALB0 PUE SBiGBMETRY aseaT Buipnpxg) s1auio (1a)
- - EIET o
. Aued peieley o) SUROT
S81'05'88 196'I6'ZT'L suenT sadodws-
ok suea] (n)
000'00°LL'BE 0oo'oo'LL'gE 5 S|UBIEAINDT YSED PUE Y527 UBLL 18Yj0 SSURIEG HUEE (A1)
tPE'95'ZA'SR'Z B69'9Z B0 LY ] sjuajeainba ysea pue yses (i)
. h L sajqeniaoay apzJ] (1)
=] SBWISSAU| JUBLND (1)
$]ASSE [RIOURULY JUBLIND
159'F1'10') * 0SZ'9L'¥T'6Y < ¥ S19SSE [RIOURULY JUIIND-UON |B10 1
= GiS'EY ZB'9F vE (panong jsaia)ll Bupnou|) NUmepy
SYUOW 7| Usu] 210w yim slisodag sueg-
- v E joENUO D pabpaH sBpup 1855y SABALSC-
¥E 19SSy 19%IEW O] YIB| asnEAUaQ-
. = ¥E B|QEIBATIBY] JUNOWY-
= vE 294 9IUBIEND JO |UNCJIE UO S|gBAIRDSY-
- - re sbleyoing wawded aje jo JUNOIIE L0 S|dEAIBIBM-
= = ¥E EIpU| JO JUBLILLIGADS)
Ag paoiaas ANy SpUOE J0 JUNCO0E UD S|QEISATDSY-
) = rE 1saua Buipnpul sa|qesEosy IseaT-
656 EF'8L or0'ZL'BE'L e sysodag-
a0y (A
- £E SO (P
= = £e [parusoe jsauai
Buipriou) wewwanog o} ugon (2
BGY'0.L'88 PEO'0Z'E0'L e seafoidwl (q
. - £E fuag paiepy o) sueo (B
SUBDT
N N Ze sa|geMaIaY SpE) |
) i . . |eorgng
L'E
paionn -(bupeuapun
10185 Jijand AUSWLIBA0D) slusWnnsy| 1gag Ul (g
L'E {paioni) uawnuisu; funb3a v (e
SjuawsaAUl JuBLNa-Lop (1)
S109SSE [B[OUEULY JUALIND-UON
Bwoou0] Jwoou]
8507
1500 pasiowy amsuauduIod | o004 yBnang 1500 pasiowy sasetisicinos AreieUndd soj0N sjosse [ejouely
, PHIQ anjea Jie4 80 ybBnoay; anjea Jeq

ybBnoJyy anjea se

ybnoay anjea Jaje4

PZ0Z 'uduepy ISLE Se sy

SZOZ "YIBW ISLE I8 5Y

(& u1 Junowry)

fobayes Aq sjuawinnsuj [elaueuld (v

juswainsesapy anjep Jied(|

juswabeuey) ysiy pue sjusWNIISU| [BIDUBUIY UO 8INSO|9SIQ EE-9I0N

nuwwer ‘ddA9d




890°01°LL'62'6 = - £66'P8'08'52'0C . - SaMGER [BIDUELLY [B)OL
86Z'VE'ZE'BLT * = LZ0'BP'PD59'S - saiiqery |edURLLY JUALING [BI0L
LLLLYO0PLE B0V'50'1L0°L5°G ¥ 0z ssnigen waung ;2o
= - 7 0Z enua) palpay-Awagen asneauaq (q
: ¥ oz Kunger e oL sew aaneausg (q
BIG'ELLEL ¥ 0z sBUMDLOT Lo NP 10U INQ PRNUIDY 152Ul (8
salgel [eRueUY uaLnD syl (i)
srl'gr'ol'y 05'SE'EL'Y goe sesuciaul wripap pue |Bws ‘oo Bupnow sageley apeil (v
CLE'OF'ES BEL'EL' D Z0Z suoneBigo ases| Jo sanUNiELL [UBLNT (A)
ol . LoZ sbumounog
ey Buol Jo senumew weuna Buipnpul wie ) bous- Bumowuog ()
SaPIIger |elueLlg JUBLND
nil'si'al'ol's = = 996'9£'92'09'7C i Saniiger |eidoueuly JUBLINJ-UON |B)0]
= = €0} [{i=V ]
pabipaH Japun AlIGE" aAlEALaC) sajigen) [eRusul a0 (A)
. - ok (e
LN @ANBAUBQ) SBIIGE(] |2RUEL 4 15U (m)
LLZ'ze'oL GE6'ZO'E £0L ((1penu0D pabpetd Japun ALICE aAneAUBC pUE Aliger
WL eaneauaq Buipnpxs) sangiger [EIoUBUL JSUL0 ()
BEE'CL'LT Ged'LL'eg =1t salligel| asea| jo sapuniew uus GuoT (n)
DEg'Ie'L8'50'9 0BZ'06'E5'65'YE Lot stiumonon wust-Guo (1)
saipjiqer] [ejueuly JUaLINd-UoN
Buwioau] e awoau|
aAlsuayaidwon oapsuayasdwon 5507 J0 JYOId
s09 paspuow 6
150D pasjyowy W0 1o «W“—“ﬂ “__u“E_._.— 1500 pasiyowyf 5100 YBNoJU) anfeA Jie4 SI)JON senliqey jepueuld

ybnosy anjea neq

ybnoay) anjea Jje4

¥20Z "U2IEN I5LE SE SY

SZ0Z 'YIIEW ISLE Je SY




| 5B0S£0L 4] 0 ETTLIE 0 SOpliqe!] eoueUL] |50L
5605T0L 0 TEZLLB £ (BIpU) jo JUSLLLIBAOE
An paoiuag AN spuog spemol ajgeded
Buipnjou)) saqugen [eoueuly wua ] Buo sago )
¥ 02 pue 158J3|U1 PBNITOE PUE S8I1UNJEW
L0219t waung Bupnou stuweuog wea ] GuoT (1)
SaNIIqer] [e1au ]
—
0 FFBLIGE 1] ] FLADLEZ0S SJAssY [BlUELL [EI0L
o vE BIpU) J0 JUaLLIBADS A paiaas Ain)
SPUCH JO JUNDDDE UG 3|qEIBACIEN-
= 3 (3 SISO TIGEIFA0TI-
= 9.5'Er' 28 S : (paruzze
FE |5adaqu BUipnu} Ajumepy syiLow
21 Uey) 10w ym spsodaq ueg-
BG6'TE BL OFD'CL'EE L vE spsodan) Aunoss
% £E
a * EE
Isaua) Buipnipu) Ysapeid
[EUDEUNRY |0 JUBLILBADS) O} UBDT (2
- - cg fled paiejay o) sueo (g
00'Z86'€4'0L'L 00’866 vS'80 OLpuBgE (sueo|
uauno Gupnjoul) saakojdws (e
suEo (1) |
» TE SOIGEAIBIN BPEI] (1
S)@5SE |EIDUELl]
E |ana] Z [3aa7] L |2ne € |aAa] Z A L A O SR '*
FEOT "UDJeR ISLE e Sy SZTOT "YEW ISLE IE Y SIENNPEY _
IpASOlaS|p BJE ANjEA NE4 L3ILUM 10) 1503 pasIHOoLLIR JB paINSEAL Sa|IQRI)Siassy [B1ouELLg (g)
(2w unowy)
WBwRINsEaW anea 22y BULUND2I-UOU SE PAPSSED PUE SIER 123US S0UBEY IB J5CO PASINOLLE 1B PAUNSESLL USEG AR SH1IGEN [RDUBLY PUE 518558 [EIOUELY 18UI0 (Y
(WO S) BIPUJ JO UOHEROSS Y SSMIEALSC] PUE (83BN ABLOY BLUODU| pax|d Jad SB p3ALSD UBaq SABY S3|B1 ‘SJUSLLINISL 3581} 0 [oadsa) U $3181 |ayiew pajanb 1S3I8] JO aoURSqE ayj il ,
ajon
u: SOpliqer] |Bjoueuld |Ej0L
= yoz
DB afipay Japun BT saneaLag {1
pue ¢g) 1riue) pabpeH Japun Auiger sajieauag (i}
= ¥ oL
ol 2
puE £91 (uanda peasds leg) ANGE WLIW aaneauad (1)
T LA 38 S2UPGEr] [EIouUBuL
= = = 3 S)855Y |EISUEUIS B0
) KERIEE enuos palpeH Jepun 1wssy aapenuag {1}
= - Ll PUE g {dems fjuo uodnogy
pue ucndo peaids |BD) 1958y WLW aaneauaq (1)
| LA 1B 51955y |BlouRul
- gpuE | g . palon[ JBuepapun 10pas Jjgng
AUBLULIBACL)) SIUBLUNSY| 1990 U] -
= [ Tp=1en) ISLras0] AinBS ) -
~Sjusunsaau] (1]
120LA4 JE 31955y |BlaUBULY
£ [9n0  [ana L [Bno7) £ 128 Z 198a7 L jana
*oN 210N sienoiued
PZOT 'YIEW ISLE SE SY SZ0T ‘'U2JEW I51LE IE Sy
(2 v} unowy)
JuUBWINSEAY BNRA Jieg GUlLnDay-an|ep JiB4 IB pRINSEDY STHIGRI/SI0SSY [Blausuld (e)
“JSRURiUl JO SBIE 8YIEW UBY] JaM0] JB SUED] pue ABuowl p Apinoas PSRN SILY | SIUSLUINISUT IB)ILIS jD $2jank 138 DUE SUDIDESUR) |3y juauns Hgeaasqo woly saoud Buisn sisfjeue smoy yseos pajunodsip

o paseq sppow Busud paidasoe Ajesaual yim SOUBPIODDE Ul DIUILLBISE i € [3AB] Ul PRPNUI SBNIIGE]| PUB SI2SSE [BUBLY [0 SNEA N2} 8L 1§ [8A2] U) PARNEU SIUSWRSU $4) RIED 1938w 3|0BAISSq0 UD PISE] 10U §1 Sindu JUBSYINEIS U} |0 SIEW Jo BUC || if [aAa]

‘S SUBGT WS | 'SENIel [SBSSE JEEN O B SAIEALSD SIPNIDUN SIL| 7 [BAS] U1 PEENIDUL S1IUSLUMIISU U] ' SIGEAISSOD SUB USWILISUI Ug 3njEa

dey o) paunbas sindu yuesipubils e ) saiewWis Jyoeds-ANua uo Sigissod S 3(| S8 ARl PUE BIED 1BYIEW BIGBAISSGO 0 85N BU) ASILUKELL UDIYM SBnbiuyaa) uonenea BUISH PaLILLSISR SI |34ISW SADE UB U1 DEPE 10U SU8 JEU} SJUBLLINISU [BIDUBLY [o SNjEA NEJ @l 7 [eAS]

ajep Gujpodal sy e se saoud Buisop i Buisn panjea aUE SEYIEW ADUOLY PUE BBUELDKD

yaolg posuBooal ay) Ui papel) ale Laigw spucq Suipnpul sjuswnnsur finba (B jo anjea sep sUL ssid paionb 9ABY 1BY) SPUCG PApEJ] PUB siuawnuisul Aunba pais)| sapnjou sy seaud pajonb Buisn PRINSEOL SIUBLINISUI [BIDUELY SSPNEU AUSRia | [@aaT ) [eAa

JSlUBUBINSERR anjEA JIED, €1 L-SY pU| SBpun paquasaid Seas| el BUIMCIo) 3L 01Ul SIUBWINISUI [BIDSUEUY 51| DaUISSER SBY Auedwos au) “anjea Jey BULiLU@ep Ul pasn sindul Ui jo A

)3 Ay INoge UoneEpul ue spacsd

G 'SIUSLISIES |BIOUBUY BUj Ul PISORSIP BB BN|EA HE} UDIUM JO) DUB JSOD DESIHOWE 1 DRINSESW (4) pUE Bnjes JIE) |E pRUNSEall pus pasiufosal (B) aie B SJUSLLNIISUN [BIUBL L) |0 SanjeA e &U) BUiLILLSapR Ul Spel SIS pue siuswaBpnl su) suejdsa uonaes S|

nwuwer ‘ddAd

Aysseseiy anjep sied (1)

INIWIUNSYIW NOILVNIVA Hivd (g



leuziew sue sBumouog Lwel Buoj Lo PRLINDUI SIS00 LONIBSURI] YONS BISLM POUIBW 1SaIall) BA0a)a ay) BUISN 51500 UOKSESUEY SNUILL SNjEs 32} 18 ARG PESILBO2S) IR 1S00 PASIIOLIE 18 |

qns aJe e} sa 1 14 (g)

TdHN o iy sbemay pajybop, 811 UD pAsEq S| £- |aAaT B PAISSELD SIUSLUINGSUI [EDUBLI aNjEA IE] 0L DESH S1E) JUNBaSIP au) (Z)

EIPNPUL SJUILUTUISUN [BIDUBUY JO SNEA JIB} SUILLSISP 0] PRSN S2NHIULTEL Uonenies SWoads '5|GB|IEAR BIEP JUBAD|S 1SOW PUE 1580 a4 Buisn sam

‘sisfjEug Moy USED PRUNooSIP BuIsn pauiiualap S1Sjusungsul [eoueuy §

L0 SN|EA NES -

"SJUSLLILIS UL JBJILLIS 10) S3jenk J3(Eap 10 Soud 1aIew pHonD Jo S50 -

Bl| [BRUBUY IO SI2558 [Blaueuy sanes Ausdwed auy (1)

san|eA Jig} aujWia)ap o0} pasn ssadoid pue sanbiuysay uonenjep (p)

anjea Jej ay) o) lenba aue sjunowe GuALED ag) 'snEas Jiey |2 PRINSESLL S3IGEN [EIIUEUY PUE SI955E [EQUELY J04-

FANJEU UWUP] JOYS JIBY] o) #Np 'SInEA

2} IBl) S BLUES SU) &G 0 PAISPISUCD 208 S [2IDUBUY URLND Jayo pue s3igefed apel) ‘sBuimouog Lua) UOYS 'SROUBADE PUE SUBD| LLIST-UCUS ‘SJUSEAINDS USED DUE YSED '(JUSLNT) SAIEAIS0S] 131M0 PUB SREI | 'SJUSLLISAAL JUBLING 0 S|UnoLE BURLEs) B |

~tojop
SZ£'99'/6'60'D Ly¥'e9°L6'60'0 26¥ L2'Y8'09 ¥ oLZ'ee’sL'0n've saniqer] [EouEUl (210
S60'52'0L Lzze’o £2T'LL'E GEG'ZH'E (BIpUY JO JUBLILIBAGS
Ag paoiaag fng spuog spuemo) ajqedey
=18 Bupnpu) sappgen jepuew g we ) Buor sawyo ()
DEZ'IE'IR'G0'D 0EZ'LE Ja'60'9 GIE0L6L09'YE GIZ0LGL08'YE ¥ 0z pue 522U PArUDoE DUE SenUniEw
LOZ'LGL juaiing Buipnpu sumonog wua) Buos ()
Sap|[qel [eIn0edg
L6 L1 68 L Zva'va's6'E ¥L9'04'62'08 ZLEVE'LY'05 SIRSSY [BloVEUL] [Bj0L
: - 2 * BIPU J0 JUBLILIBADS) Aq PEIAISS AlIN)
¥E SPUAQ J0 JURBASE Lo B|RIaALIEY-
= " 3 5 [ SIALIO-BIEIBADI0N-
= = IS ErZa OF SIS ER TR OY (paruzaz
isauau) Buipnoul Gumepy syuow
re 21 Uy 20w ypwm sysodan yues-
BSE'ER'BL BGE'EV 81 OFD'ZL'8EL Or0'TL'BEL e spsodaq Aunoas
1230 (]|
= : > €E 5380 (0
& £ 2 < (panmoy
ysauaiu) Buipnou) ysspeig
€5 [EIBURLY 10 [USLWILISACS) 0} UEaT] (3
- . £E fue4 paiegay o) sUBo (g
; isueg|
ZRR'ELOLL £8a'0zaL'L 866 ¥5'BO'Z 109'BL'9z'2 DI PUE €€ RS BPTR <eaRoiti 15
S0E0 (1] |
= G Sa|guAEoay apuil (1)
51955 [RIoURUL]
an|eA Jjed Junoily Buiies anjep ey JunGiUy BuiAien "ON 20N
PEOT 'UDITW I5LE JE SY SZOZ 'Yaiey IsLE 1 Sy SIEINIIE

(& w1 unowy)

1500 PAS[HOLIY 1B POUNSEDIL SOIIGE]] PUE 51085y [B|OUBLLd JO oA Jied (9]



S]0B[UOD
jo adA} ales ay} 1o} SB|GRAIS02) apel SB SONSLSIORIBLD ysU alues ay) Aenueisgns asey pue sjep Guipodal ay) 18 pajiig 10U ing pajejdwos yiom Joj uoheiapisuod o} jybu s Auedwon auyy o sajeel fuewud
anuanal pajiqur] ‘sjayiew juspuadapul fiaBie| ul sjeiado pue sSWOOSIOSeUEdLWOD JUBWUIAADE 81e)s AjUIRW S0R SIBLICISND SH SB ‘MO SI SB|qEAIBDal apel) 0] 1aadsal Lypm 35U Jo uoheluasuoo ey Auedwog
auy} Jo 8sea ay) u| “pasopuciu ApenBas ale sejgenanal Bulpueising SIBWOISND By} Jo pioosl yoen juawied ayy siojuow Auedilos) By | SSBUISNG JO SSINCD [BULDU Ul SI3W0JSND 0] §PS13 spusixe Auedwog ayl

-1 Sa|(eAla0a) ISEI| PUB aNUA3) Pa||iqun ‘sajqeAsladay apel]

‘SIUBLUNIASUI [BIDUBUI IS0 pUE SyUBq ypm sysodap Buipniaur 'saipanoe Buipueuy s woy pue (sajqesasal apelt Auewud) samanoe Bugeiado sy wol) ysu ppaso o) pasadxs s AuedwoD ay |

W51 1PaIn (d)

sdems fouauna pue afipay ayel jsalajul jo Aem Ag sBuimonioq Aouauno uBeioy wuey wnipaw sy sefipay osje Auedwoo ayy Jayun4 fuedwoo sy jo Apjgejyolsd ay) 1oedw jou op pue

HUE} Woyy 3jqelanoas) aie suoleues ¥suU aoud Jayjo pue suoneues aiel abueyoxe fousung 'aiel jsalaiul Ul UONREUBA 30UBH ‘suonenbay Jue| U] JO SWID) Ul SSUBIDSUSE WoJ) S|0BIBAC0S) 05|82 208 SaXB] pue
suoneuea sjel sbueyoxg ubBiod '‘aroge au) o) uolhippe u| ‘sueo’ [Epde]) Buppop Lo IsaUFIU| G bue sasuadxy sousualiely R uoneladQ ¢ ‘suBoT Uo Jsasau| € ‘uonemaudag 'z '(3oy) Ainb3 uo wmay |
‘sjusuodwiod

anl Buimolio) aup jo Buisudwos (J4y) sebieyn pax4 lenuuy ybnouyy (DH30) voissiwwog Aojeinbay Auoups3 (enuag aug Ag paxy s) Auedwoo sy jo Jue ] Juswuacimua pajenbal B w sajelado Auedwoo sy

‘sajel 1saiajul leyew u) sabueyd jo asnesaq sjeniony

(M JUSLUNIISUI [BIDUBUL 2 JO SMO|) USED SIMN) JO 8NjeA J1gy 8U) 18U} YSU aU) S ¥sU 8kl 1saiaju| sajel abueyoxe ubisio) U sebueyd Jo asneoaq sjeniany (W JUSLWNISUI [BIDUBUY B JO SMOY USED 24NNy 10 aNn|eA Jie)
au jey) ysi ayy s1ysu Aouauno b0 ‘sjuswsaAUl pue sisodsp 'sBUIMOLI0] PUE SUBO| SPN(DUL 5L 18%IBLL AT Paj0aye SIUSWNASUI [BIoUBUL] 3su soud 1gap pue Alnba se yons 'sysu aoud Jayio pue ysu sjel
1saseu ysi ajel Aousuno ysu jo sadA) sauy) 1o asudwod seoud Jesel “seoud 1eyiew W sabusyo Jo 8SNEDSG SIEMONY |IIM JUSWNISU| |BIDUBUY B JO SMOJ) USBD 24nin) 10 3N |2A JIE) SUJ 1B HSU U} S| YSU 19348
Hsu 1axaei (1

sass0| a|geydasoeun Buwinoul inoyum sucieBiqo [eisie)|oa pue ysed ainny pue jussald s) 18al 0] 8|0. aq jou Aew Aueduog Byl 1BUY) 4SU 3U) S1 ysu Aupinbr

“ysid Aypinbl (11

SUOINPISUI [BIDUBUY PUE SHU2Q UM spsodap Buipniour seiaoe Bupueu) ) woyy pue (sjesse pases|/sajgenieoal apel) Auewud) saijanoe

Bunesado sy wol) ¥su Ypao o) pasodxa s) Auedwoo sy | sso| [eioueuy B o) Buipes] ‘pEIUOD IBLICISND 10 JUSLWINGSW [BIoUBLy B apun suojebigo sp jasw jou w Aued IBIUNDD B JBU) ¥SU BUL 51 jSU Jpaus)
ysu HpaIg (1

‘SjUBLUNYSUI [BIDUBLIY JO 88N ) Wouy sysU Bumo||c) ay) 0) pasodxe s| Auedwion au |

“pomasluel) Juawabeuew

ysu s Auedwor) sy jo ybisisno pue WawYs|gelse auyl Joy Aupaisuodsal ||21ano sey S10102liq Jo pi2og aul Ausdwio ay) Ul jusluabeuBLU ysSU Jo) Yiomaluels |leiaao apimosd o) Aoljod JusweBeuew ¥sU pauysp
-lam e sey Auedwo?) ‘seonoeid pue swaishs sienbepe Buidojanap AQ SWEOUDD YONS SSBIPPE O} saunseall ajenbape usye) sey fuedwor) sy "sysU snouea o} 2|qideosns § ayew sanapoe s Auedwo) ayl

jiomawey) juawabeuew ysry

dems Aluo uodnoo pue uondo pesids

eD ‘uoleinBay
430 Jed se yuey yBnoulyy paianosel
s uoneuen ajel abueyoxe ubieioy sisAleuy Ainpsusg NI Ul p3jBUIWIOUSP Jou sal|igel |enueuy pesiuBioosy abueyoxs uBlaioy -ysiy 1axen
UCIEDISISAIP DI0ILO0d sIsAfeuy AjnHSURS sanunaas 1gap pue Aunba ) Juswsanu| saoud Ajunoas -ysiy W@Yep

uonenbay ny30 sad se
yuey yBnoiy) palancoal siisalejul |Bnoy £
Bupueuysy 7

sajel
Buneoy pue 211 paxy JO UOREIYISIBAI] | sishleuy AlnjIsuag sajel sjgeuen Je sbumoliog wusy Buon) o).l Jsaialu| -ySiy 1een
‘sanne) Bumouog sjabpng 3 s1sE0810)
PUE SBUI P33 PARILILWIOD Jo AIjigeeny Mo} yseo Buoy 2e) Jepo pue sBuimouog ysie Ajipinbi
‘SJBLIOISND Pa)I3|as Jo) HpalD ‘Bunes| “ajqeniacay asean '1S00 PASILOLWE 12 PaINSEall S)3SSE [RIDUBLY pUB
10 Jape| ‘susodap yueq jo uoheswisiang| ppaio ‘sisAjeus Guisby| sajqeneoal apel] ' seoueleg yueg JayQ ‘sluajeainba ysen g Uysed HSU Hpaud
juawabeuey Juswainseagy wouy buisue ainsodxg ASIY

-:MD]90 SE PIZUEBLULINS 3JB 353l L sysu |Bioueuy jo Mauea e 0) )l asodxa sagianoe s Auedwog syl
$10}08] YSH |BjouRUlS ()

nwwep ‘ddAd



‘g 3y jo uonejuasald jo ajep sy woly (sAep pg snid sAep gy jo pouad anp Buiag) sAep g, Jaye uana Aeoyauaq Aue Ag apew jou sijuswied uaym 21 ‘ajep anp
3L Jo sAep og puodeq senp Jo Juswhed-uou Jo ased Ul Jeuuew [enpeif e u Ausdwa) ayy Ag amod jo uonenBal Jo) sapinoid gzoz 'seiny (sianew paieley 3 abieyning wawiled s1e1) Aoumoai3 'osly N=40
pausaouos sU o} pied pue sielS 8l JO 82UBISISSY UB|d |BAUSY aul Woy paonpap aq ued senp Sulpueisine auyy 'Auun =1e1s Aue Ag senp uauno (o juswied ul gneap Aue st alay) ey sapnold ose wdl
ay syuow g ise so) fuedwod sy o Bulig Ayuow abeisne ay jo %501 Buleaos s usdo 0} pauinbal s1e SISWOISND Y} (Ydd) siualealfy aseyding Jamod pue Ydl ay) jo sugisincud auy Jad sy s3igis
au1 jo 150w Aq paubis usaq sey awes au pue siesh | Jo pousd ISUYIOUE 10} Sy 4| 858U JO UoisusiKe auy) peacidde sey BIpu| JO IUBWWSACS) 'gLOZ 290100 ||} PIBA SEM YOIUM ‘|09 3y} Aq Z0-100Z Buunp sanp
S$H33 J0 WBYDS JUSWSSS BLWI| BUQ BL JO B0UBNSS! 8L} 0] JusnbasqNs SJUSWILISADS) S1BIS |ENPIAIPUL 8YI PUE |9 'BIPU| O 1A09) 3 Buowe paubis (vd)) siuswealBy aliued-u] au) AQ payoeq (D7) upaiD
JO sia)ET Jo W) SU) Ul wsiueysew Aunoaes juawded 1sngol B sey Auedwon ey | Sjuswisans) SlelS Ag psumo saiiin 21els Jo Auew Buisudwod siswioisna ying o Alouosie sies Auewnud Auedwon eyl

WS Jpala jo uohENUSaIUCD ou S| alayl AleaydeiBoal "eipu) jo sa1Es snoues Jeao peasds ale Auedwoo au Jo sTuBLEUSq pUeR suonels Jamod auy)
sy juswabeuew sy Jo Juswssasse Jad se Aaaooss Joj suondo sjgejieae ||g Buuspisuos Jaye sa|qeaanal Jo Janooal jo Ajpgqissod jueoiubls ou SI 3iay) Ul USYM SINO30 SI8Sse [einusul jo AsAosal ul jnejep
$3550| IpaJo pajoadxa awn ay Buisn painseaw s1 30UBMO|JE SSO| YDIYM 10) SISSSE [BIDUELILS (O)

'sISEq S5BJ-0)-9SE3 UD $80| Ypauo pajoadxa Jo) sapinold pue inowmeyaq uswdéed w sabueyo Buuapisuoo siseq BuinBuo ue uo sajgeaoal Buipueysino sassasse Auedwon) sy
Sasso| ppalo pajoadxa yjuow g Buisn painseaw si aouemojjE SSO| U2IYMm 10} S}OSSe |21oueuld (e)
-: 59580| UpaJd pajsadxa 104 uoisiaold (1)

SEE'TP'PE'LL'S £89'5P°LE96'S (g+v) V101
g = {8) 1;10L
E = (is=u9u) Buipnjou|) sajgealsosy asea]
- = EEREINESENEREINE

(703] sassoq npai1) pajoadx3y
aw a1 Buisn painseaw s1 92UBMO||B SSO| YJIUM 10} SI9SSE |BIDUBUIS

SBEZY V6 LLS £89'5V'LE96'G W eolL
665 0B'E0C9¢C /8. FBR9'0.L b (SajqeAieday aseaT BUIPN|oXd) s18ssY [BIDUBUIL] JaL0O
G81'05'68 /88'/B'TT | JUSIINY- SUBOT
000'00'LL 82 D00'00'LL'82 SjusieAinbg (seD pue yseq uel) 1syjo sadue(eq yueg

V#6596 29 582 56992 €0 L S)UB[EAINDS USED pUE (se]

s SjualsaAl] lUalIng
(Juawjoly Buipusd Aauoyy uolesddy
6S6'EY'BL 919's1'12'8v alByg PUE Sa|qEAB0BY 35207 BUIPN|oX3) 51955y [PIOURUIL JUBLND UON J8LIQ

2639'0.'89 PEO0Z €0 | (1sa19pu1 Buipnour) Juauny) Uop- sueoT
m = {saumuap, JUlor puE saUBIPISONS UBL) 13UI0) SIUSLUSaAUL JUSLIND-UON
(103) sasso upai) pejoadxy

sijjuow g| Buisn painsealw s1 aoUBMO]|E SSO] LJIYM 10} S]ISSE |BIDUBLIH

ST0Z

‘Yolep Ispgie s
$Z0Z "Yoie Is|¢ Je sy ‘Yole ISLE 38 SY sJgnaned

(2 w1 junouwry)

Japun se st ajep Buipodal ay) 1 ysi ppao o) aunsodxe WNWIXEW sUY | 'sInsodxs J1pa.0 WNWIXEW sy} siuasaidal 519sse [eidueUy Jo Junowe Buiiued ay |
¥S1 JIpa4o 0} aansodx3 (1)

IN- :Auedwoq awy fig panss) asjueiens) ajesodion

"jueq ajBwis Aue o) sunsodxa pajul| s sy¥UBG 10108 oljgnd pue ajeaud SSOIE DOYISIBAID [[BM 3JE LDILM SHUBD

Uim syisodap pue saouejeq sey Auedwos sy "sYUBQ PEINP8YS Yum sisodap Wis) Hoys Ul yses snjdins sisanul Auedwon) sy sbuimonog pajieae osie sey AUediion) au) UoIus Llis SHUBG LIIM paUIEILIELL
ale ssouBjeq By 'ABIsuas) peuIBuEW BiE S)ISodep puB SeDUE(Eq UIIUM UJM SYUBQ 199]9S O} SPIEPUEIS 821AI8s PUB LonEndal jUeLL yUB SU) Jo aZis 'plodal ¥IBl) SB UONS SIO0e) siapisuod Auediwon) ay |
-: sjisodap yseo pue sjualLNIISul [BIJUBUL4

“ueo| ay; uo Ynejsp jo Aqegosd Aue sBesiaus Jou seop uswabeueyy B)Els Ay} Ul PAUOISSILILLCS aq 0} 10alold JUPs|30IPAY 1S BY) WO} JUSWLISACE 818)s au) 10 Jamod 234) Jo ieYs SU) WO 3|gBISA0D3) §I

PUE 1500 pasiUoWE e painseall uasq sey ueo| ay| aiels auy u sposlod suppaoIphy Jo UoHoNNSUSD J0) USEpEld [BUDBUNY JO JUSLWILWIBACS) pue Auedwon) au) ussmiaq paubis BulpUEISISPUN JO LUNPUBIOWSY

jo suonipuoo pue suus) ayy Jad se (Aenuue papunodwos) Iseisiul o BBl %6 1B USBpRId BUSBLNIY JO JUSLILLISADS 0) Ueo| uamb sey Auedwod syl : YSIpEId |EYIUBUNIY JO JUSWIUIAA0S 0} SUBOT
‘sueo| asay) uo ynejap jo Algegosd Aue sBesiaus Jou seop pue elep ised au) passasse sel jusweabeuey

‘uanif ale sUBO| U2NS UdIYM Jo} slesse au) Jo uonedsyodAyabeBuow jo Aem A paunoes ale sjesse jo uogisinboe 10y sueo| wiey Buo ‘seakojdwa au) jo Alejes A|LIuoLu Sy} WO SISBq JUSLL|EISUI PaXl) UD SI UBOD|
3U1 J0 AUBA00BI BY L ‘BIBp 198U S0UE|BG 1B SO0 PISILOWE jB paInseslu usaq aaey yaiym soijod s fuedwog sy Jad se sajel [eUDISSaoUnY je saakojdwa o) sueoj ueAlb sey Auedwo) ay) :sueoT aakojdwg
-1 1500 pasIpoWe Je S}asse [e1oueuly

‘sa|gealacal spel) Jo) paijdde se siseq SwWes aU) UO passosse ale SUCElS Jamod auy) Jo Jdd ‘2l Ss19sse pesea| uo jedpund pue 3Woou) 1sa18iUl jo Aijigeiaaodal pue Aeoyauaq ajbuis o) samod Jo sjes

10y ate suaweeibe sseyoind Jamod ay] "HE 'ON 10N Ul 0} paLISjal SB S8SEaT, -91 L SY puj Jad se ases| aoueuy se paissep sjuaweaiby aseyoind lamod o) piebai ym ase Aueduica auy jo s3|qeAIa0al aseaT



isan||iqer] [e|ouBULd JO SaRLMEN (1

-1 s3I0y BuIMoLI0g UMBIPUN JO SULIB |

- - 18101

upai)d Usea {9)
paunaasun-ueo wia | (q)
painoag-ueo wua| (B)
Buimouiiog a)el paxid
upa1D yseo (o)
painoasup-ueo uua] (q)
pasnoag-ueo uwual ()

-2 buimowog ajes buneo)q

¥Z0T 5202
‘YDUBW ISLE JB SY | 'UDIBW ISLE Je SY sig|naiped
{2 u1unowy)

Jeak Butodal syl Jo pua ay) je saniioe) Gumoniog umelpun Buimao)|o) syl o) ssaocae pey Auedwod sy

sanpjioe) Bumouog sy jo Aue uo payosealq jou aie (s|qedidde aisym) sjueuaaoo Jo sy Bumouog

au} jeyl os saLwy |2 je senioe) Bumouog PaILLILIOD UMBIRUN S LD WooIpEay juaioyns Buluiejuiew a|ym spasu [2ucieliado pue ainipuadxa |2pdeo 188l 0] YSED JUaIIYNS SBY 1l Byl aunsua o] siuawannbal
Aupinbil 511 Jo sisesalo) Bujos sioyuow Auedwo?) sy ‘spesu uoisuedxa LWUS) WNIPaW 0} HOYS S)i 199l 6] JUSIDIYNS 2B S|BIIODE |2WSIUI PUB JIP2I0 JO SaUl] PalliWLLDD JUSHLIND 84| Spunj 10} paau s)i j@aw
0} smol yseo Bunesedo mwwoxm pue sBuimouog jo X B o sa1au AuedwoD 3y siuawannbal |BiSie||00 pue YSED S) BSLW 0} Bl ||B 1B Aypinbi| jo sjaas| wnwndo uwielmew o s| asgseigo s Auedwon ay) (1
‘anp Usum

suolefijqo j9sL 0} SSIIoR) HPSUD PARILULICD Jo Junowe sjenbape ue ybnoly) Buipuny jo Ajgelieag U} pue sanunoss aqelayew pue yseo usioyns Bunepew saydw) uswabeuew ysu Appinbi) juspnig

Jueoipubis jou a1 saoUBMO||R U2NS JO SJUNOWE 31} SB SJ8SSE [2IDUBUY JaUJ0 AUE Jo j0edsa) Ul AUESS30aU S| 20UBMO||2 JuaLLIiedw) ou jeu) saAsliaq AusdlloD auy) 'sejel JNelsp [2olols|y o peseg

2 E . . - 5Z0Z'C’LE 38 Sk asueeg

. W 5 i = sa0UEMO||y 507 W saliueyn

- ( - = a $Z0Z'¥’'L J& Se aouejeg
= . = = - sooUeMo||y 507 Ul sabueyd

= r # . a £Z0Z°¥°1 J& Se sduejeg
SA|(BALDDDY
apeay, sIenanade

0], SuBRCy ILIDA00DY WIHEL) SIUDULSDIALU]

(2 urjunowny)

'smo)jo) se sem tead ay} Buunp siasse |BouBUl Jo joadsal Ul jusuniedun Jo) SOUBMO|E 2] Ul JUSIISACW 31|
suoisiaold sso| Juauuiedwi jo uoneouo2ay (1)

*S8|QBAISIR) SPEY) JO UONEZI|ESJ-UCU JO JUNODOE UD YSU
unejap Aue abesiaus Jou seop Auedwoo ajep Bupodal au) Je Sy 'SISEq 9520-0}-85E0 UO $S0| Jpalo pejoadxa o) sapiwosd pue Inoineyaq juswded pue synsal Bunelado w sebueys Buuspisuos siseq Buiobuo ue
uo sa|gqealecal epel) Bulpuelsine sassasse Aledwion) U] IaAaMOH SSIQEMSO2 SpRI) JO LoNEZ)jeal Ul A2jap 0] anp ABUOLL 0 8N|BA aLUIj 0] aNp SSO| 10 SAURIDYBUAY WD S8|qBAIS9a) J0 anjea Suf) Ul jusuuiedun
Jeyye sBesiwue jou seop Auedwon ay) ‘sajgesi@oal apel) loj aousuadxa sso| )P [BoUolsly 3Y) Buuspisuco pue swWoosi SIBIS (SIUBWIWSACD) 2118 AluBliud aie sauBmNBUSq JBL) 19B) au Jsyund
awhed u Aejep 0} aNp AsUoLW Jo an|eA sl Joy Auedwo) ay) seyesuadion Ajgienbape yolym ‘afiieysins Juawied-aye) o) sauemyausq Uo s|ig asiel o) Auedwon au Mo|IB BZ-pZ0E suonenbay Jue| DH30




* yuie yBnoayy ssueiayauag WoY) S|QEISADDS) SI BLUBS S SE 'SBERI Salalul Ul 8salnap/esesioul o] anp Auedwoo Bu Jo S307 pUE 014 JO juslsiele uo joedwl ou s1 alay) sBumoog
a1y Buneoy Jo ased Ul ‘@1EL 1SS pax) 12 ale Auedwoo au) jo sBumonog auyy jo Auolew ay ) sajel jsasiul ui aBueyo jo ynsal e se sBumoLog Woi asusdxa jsaisiul jamoluayBiy o] 9ANISUSS 31 S50| 10 OI4
sisf|euy AjAlsuag sjey Jsalaiu|

0EZ'LE 2B'60' 962°96°C5 65T B30
(04) sbuimouog ajey paxi4|
DET'LE'LB'BO'S %08 'L S0P'EG'/6'18'8 %58 L (N1 sBuimouog a1ey paxi4
(14} sBuwowiog ey Buneo)
2 = LBR EF'9G' L4'GL 9,998 (4N} sBumoLiog sjey Buneol
(%) el jsasmm (95) S1E1 jSaIEL
abeiane pajybiam abriane pajyblom
‘ vezoe §zoz 5202
24e s e SIE|NDIUE,
Ve0T UMIBWISLEI® SV s e asie e sy ‘Yose ISLE IR SY | 'YDIBp ISLE JB SY WD

{2 urunoury)
'smo|jo) se aue Jeak Buipodas sy jo pus sy 1e sabBueyo siel 1sausul o) Bumouog s fuedwos auy jo sinsodxa ay|

‘suohenBas yuey H¥30 Jepun sjusunsnipe Jues jo Aem Ag Alsaooal yBnouy) ayel Buneoy ui Ajigenens Joy patesusduwios osie st Ausdiios ay| s|gejieae
ale SlWIa] S|qEINOAR) UBLM pUE SE S)q3p 8s8Y) SeoueUla) Auedwos 3y} Jayun4 “ysi ajel 1salajul o] 10algns Jou aie pue JSoo pasiyolwe je pawes aie sbuimoliog sjes paxy sAuedwog apel paxi 18 sBuimouog
S}l Jo 1sow uiejuiew o st Aaljod s Auedwon “saies 1salau Buneoy yim suoneBigo 1gsp wist Buol s Auedwon sy o) Ajuewiud s312|9) S518) 1SAUSIUI JasIBW U saBUBYD JO ysu auy o) ansodxa s Auedwon ay |

TAIJISUaS puUe ysU ajed 1sa1aju) (1

‘sajel 1sasajul w salBueyo jo speya ay)
Buipnjout ‘sysu [2oueuy jo Aauea e o} )i esodxa ssinioe s AUedwo?) syl "sysl 18iewW aAnoadsal sy Ul saBUBLD PaLLNSSE 2 0 19942 Y} S1 SS07 PUE 11014 j0 JUSWSIEIS ay) JO Wa)l JUEAS[aI ay] Jo ApANISUas
3y ‘saniigel pue sjasse |eiouUeul-Uou suy uo pue suoisiaoid uogebigo wsusg uswlodwa-sod Jo anjea BullLED 2U) U0 S3JGEUEA J23EW U Sjuswasoll jo oeduw sy} sspnjoxa sisAleue Alanisuas auy |

siy 19%1el (a

saniqerT] [eueuld [ejol
000'00'LL 229 |- £59'28°61 1Z6'E5'E6'8LE £28°'9¥'L6'9F'6}
= = » 8kL'9r'sl'y BrL'OFOL'Y €02 sajgefed apel|
i : /Z9 0811 90V L9 L0FL'E EEQZP'BLFL'E P0ZeE0L sanliqen [elRuBUY JBUID
3 = 520'80'8 £/€ 9V 69 Z0/'B5 D6 AT safliger] esea
000'00' kL LZ9L |- 2 - D000’ LL'ZZ'9L 1'DZ pue L'gl sBuimoliog
SieaA G ueL SS9 siEap g uey) PEZOTEO'LE saniqe
Jeaj g UBLY) BJOW 9 lea) ¢ uBy) asOW SSa87 g JE8 ) | UBL) a10W Jeaj | ulyum uo sejgag buipumsing ‘ON 910N |EI2URUY JO SARLNEW [EMOBNUOD
(2 us yunowy) ; ¥Z0Z 'UDIBWN ISLE 1B SY
855°09'LE'89'SZ  |0LS'651L2°8SY S66'89°9L'8P'L PZ9°'S8'P0'S9’S 868'VE'EL'6E'EY sanIIgelT [BjouBUl] (B30
i g - 00SS6'EL'S D05 GEEL'D £ 0z sajqeied spei]
4 , 8¥9'LZ' Y G869} £2 8S S EES PP LE 85 G v OZREDL Saijiger] [eiouell JaW0
B = $Z5'LL'0L 6EL'EL 29 ¥/8°059E'L ZoEg 2ol saniqer] asea
855'08'1E'BE5Z  |OLGAG L2 BS ¥ CZREZ ap IV ) = L68'EF G6 EL LE L '0Z PUE |9} sBumoiiog
SIE3A § UBLY 5537 SlBa ) £ UBL) GZOETL'LE saniqel|
Jea) g uey siol B ieaj £ uBy) Aol 537 9 JE2A | UBY) SJOW aea) | UM uo se jgag Buipueysing ‘ON 210N |BISUBLLY JO SBNRLMEL |ENORNUOD
(2 ur junowy) SZ0Z 'Uoie ISLE 1B SY

Juedyiubis Jou si Bununoosip jo 1oedwi ay) se saoue|eq Buikued siay) o) (2nba s1Jesk | LM SNp SS0UBIER "SMO| USBO PSIUNCOSIPUN [BNJDENUOD SU) 218 MOjaq 3(C2) 84} Ul Pasojosip SIUNOLWE aly |




pasojosIp 10U 1 Y5U Aouaund Jo) sisfjeue Ajnisuas ‘Albuipioooy uoneinBay yuel o430 lad

se yuey yBnoiy; passacoal 1o sseubol4-ui-Lopn [eidenjasse paxy salosdsas Jo 1500 Bullied syl o] pajsnipe Jalils ale ssaul se Ausduiod aul jo woid 2y} Uo suolienony Asuaina ubiaio) jo yoedwi ou 1 assy |
sishjeuy Apanisuag (q)

Jueoyiubiis 5q jou pinom ainsodxa Yons Jo 10adsal ul §su AJusund ‘aiojeiay | BZ-pz0z uonenbay yue|

Jad se sauedyauaq Wol 3|gelancoal §| uonEues abUBYDXS JO JUNoaae o (ssojjuieb sinsodxa souejeq lo4 pabipay si uoneiodion [BUCHEUIBIU| 10} yueg uedep pue jusg HANW WO UBD| 'SADJE BL) 10 INQD
€09¥¥80LEE 90L9¥Z62S

(saniiqel)) Aouaiina ubjaio) 0} aansodxJ 19N

€09'FF'e0'cT 90.'9%'26'25 sanlliger] [elueUlg JaylQ
{Adr) uoneiodios [eucnewalu| Jo] yueg uedep

(Adr ) ¥NYE 94NN
(Adr ) Q17 uchelodio) [euoiewaju] ueder
sueoT Aouainy ublalog

*SonIIqeIT [BIOUBUL]

yzoz 5202

‘Yaien ISLE 1B SY ‘YIBIN ISLE 1B sY signaUEd
(2 urunowy)

. SMOj|o) SB BB MN| Ul passaldxs Jeak Buruodal sy Jo pua ay) 1e %su Asuauno ublesoy o) aunsodxa s Auedwon ay |

:amnsodx3 Asuauing ublaso (e)

‘suonenBay yue| DYID Ul Jepun sjusunsnipe yuey jo Lem Ag Aisacoas yBnoaly s1el abueyoxa fousiing ubiaio) ul Aljigeuea Joy pajesuadiuon si Auedwos ay |

WSy Aduaiing ublalog(in

spuog
aai4 xe | Bupnepapun jojpas oiqnd
SINUNIS JUBSILIBADSD

Anba jo syusuodwod fnba jo syuauodwod
1ayjo uo 1oedw||aBueys =, lHape  uwo  joedw|abueyo o
PZOE ‘Y2 ISLE Je sy SZ0Z "UdIely ISLE Je sy SJenoiyed

{2 U1 junoy)
Jead syl o) Anba sAuedwos O SJUSWNAISUI IGP SU3 JO &N|2A 19XJELL BU) JO 3SBDI0P/ASERIOUI JO 1oBd LI S} SISUBLULLNG MOJaq 3|qe] 31 |
(spuog Bupjenspun 101995 21|gNd PUE JUSLILISA0S Ul SJUAWISIAU]) SJUIWINIISU] JGIQ Ul JUIWSIAU] 1O
(35N} abueyox3 yoolg [euohEN 341 U pelenb se soud aleys au) Ul suohenon|) AlLpuow xis jo abiriane sieah ¢ snomasd au) uo paseq JNo payom usaq Sey AIANISUaS

PY1EIPUI D14
inba jo d
W vy | owewen || suny
H 1 ' Jo saseys fnb3 uj jusunsaau|
202 'UDJEN ISLE B SY SZOZ 'UMIEBW ISLE JB 5Y signaped

{2 ur junoury)
g2k auy Joy Aunba s fuediics auy uo sjuswngsU Ainba U juawsaAul Jo 901d 193U AU} Ul 2SB5Ia3p/a5BaI0Ul JO 10BdLLI BU) SBSUBLULLNS Mojad 2jqe) auy Al
{ 21d jo saseys fjnba ur Juaunsaau) ) sjuawnigsu] Apnb3 ul Juaunseau) Jo4
Aapisuasg ysiy adsud (q)
= - sjuawnsu) 19a0

- - sjuswngsu) finbg

vzoz SZ0Z

‘Uorew ISLEIB SY | 'YduB ISLE 1B SY
SIBNOUEH

(& U nowy)
-IBapun se aJe sjuswnysul jgsp pue Anba o) ainsodxa sy 'slep Bupodal B 1y

e8RS SOUB|EE Ul JUSLWISSAU| JUBLIND-UOL / JUSLIND JBpUN PaiyIsSe|o Usaq Sey JUSLWISeAU! 81 | “1a%Jew sy Ul papel) Appignd
2Je pue spuog J0j093 2I|gnd PUB SBNUNDSS JUBWWSA0D pejonb ssudwoo sjuswnisul 1gap ul jusunsanul sAuedwor) saBueyoxa yoois auyy i papen Apygnd =ie pue afiueyoxa Yyoo)s pesiuboosl Ul peis)
ase sajeys Aynba u uswgsaaw sAuedwod DO UBnoIy | snjep Jie4 se SJUSLUSIEIS [BIOUBLI SU) Ul PAYISSEID SIUSLUNASUI JGap puE saleys Aunba Ui juaLySaaw Wol sasue ysu aoud o) ainsodxa s Auedlwios ay

aunsodx3 (e)




‘SIUBUSADD UBO} 8ACOE a8y} Yim pandwen sey Auedwoo ay) 1eak sy) Buung

waloid ay) jo sjuawelelg
|BlouBUL] palpny 2yl Uo paseq Jayealay) 1eal [elouBUly AisA3 o pUS aU) JB PUB gZ-/Z0Z 1eak [Boueuy ‘@' suaneliado jo Jeaf (Ing 11y By Jaye paisal a4 [IM SJUBUSADY [BUBUI 4

PBIAS| 30 PINOM JSS1SIUI [EUOIDPE DU ‘S18puan
3y} 0 9|geldaaoe JeUUEL B Ul ‘pouad 21no Sy} LIYEM Paaa] S1 UDElY 3U} JUaAS ay) ] SAEp 09 jo pouad 2ino e papiaoid ag ||2Ys 1SMoLDE ay} 'SJUBUSADD SU) JO YOBAI] JO 9SED U]

(snp uswieisu| edouud + anpisaiaiu|) / (anp 1saisu| + uonenalds(] + |¥d) =408 -
(ueoT [eydeg Buppop, pue ueoT Wua) jo BupuElSINO)dIMD+ SI9SSY paxid 1aM) =40V »
{s19s5y aiqibueiu| — Aige xe ) pausjag 19N + (arasas uoneneasy Buipnoxa) sniding pue saalasay + epden aieys dn pieg) = MNL =

(suoisinol - 9 SBIIGEI JUSUND + (SI9j0WOIH WOl ueo| paunoasun Buipnioxs) sueoT painosasu + SUE0T painaes) = 10 »
02’1 (40s0) ey abeisno] soniasg jgag (w)

0%’ (40v4) oney abesaaos) jassy paxid

‘e'd sda 5z - %oL< (1

IN- %01 ordn (1pgZ

(MNLMOL) UHop 12N sigibue |saniigen Guipueising ejol (1)
uoleInS(] SI8APE J0] Aleusd MIBLW

ouag siajaweled NS

‘@aualaype-uou jo pouad

Sy} J0} paiAa| aq [im jsaai feuad Bumopoy ') o) (1) swap Buwolo) su) jo omy Aue jo 1padsal Ul mojag Se ‘[aaa] 198loi4 ay) 18 'paieindns Sieae] sl WO} UCIEIASP 85I9ADE AUE O 3583 U]

sjueUaA0D [BroueUy Bumoyo) sy uim Adwoa o) pasinbas s1 Auedwoo auyy ‘sayoe) Buimoiioq Jolew ay) Jo swa) au 1|pupn

'SJUEUaAD] UEOT [q)

"BIPU] JO JURWWAADS) Aq padiues Ajnj spuog spiemo} 2jqeded pue sBUmMOLIOE W3} HoyS 'josiay) salunjew
auno Buipnpur ssger ssea pue s1qap wue) BuoT sapn|dpul aap [B10 ] SaAasal pug [eudea penssi sapnjoul [eudeo uswabeuew jeydes s Auedwos) aus jo asodind sul o @loN

£L0 EV'0 (q/e) oney Buueag

95Z'B5'EE'RY LY PLO'8Y'9E'L0'LS [ende) |ejo (q)

ZE6'68'2.°0L'9 DLL'/¥'06'D9 b2 192a (e1oL (e)

PZOZ "YdueW ISLE Je sy SZOZ ‘YIel IsLE e sy sienoed
onpey Bunean jo Juawaielg

(2 unjunowy)

:smo||o) se ale ones Aunb3 | jgaqg sy jeuded [ejo1 AQ papIMP 1GSP [B101 1 Uoium ‘ones Aunb3 [ gaq Buisn jepdes sioyuow Auedwon sy

2430 2y Ag paguosaud ainjonns [ejdes asneLLOU sy uRIUELY 0} 2inonis endes sy sabeuew Auedwod sy ‘ABuipiosoy "s10alold Jemod JO YUe) Jo uonexy Jo
asodind ay) Joj g0/ Jo ofel Apnb3  jgeq aquosaud sucnenBay Yue] O30 SIAROYEYE)S JAL0 0] SPSUSn pUE SISp|OYSIBYS 10} SUINEI apiaoid o) Sanunuod )i jey) 05 'Wasuos Buinh
se anunuod o} Auige sy pienbajes o) s epdes Buibeuew Aq sanoalgo s Auedwod an|ea Japoyaleys 3y SZILWIXEW 0) §1 juawabeuew epdes s AuedwoD ay) jo aapalqo Leswud ay)

yuawabeue sy 1eudes (g)

nuwiwer ‘ddAd




“Jeak Bujpasaid ayj o} pasedwos se %5z uey) alow Aq ones ayy ur sbueys Aue to) uoneuejdxe alb o) pannbai si Aueduwios -1} ajoN

sjuawysanu) abelane SJUBLLIISBALY
YN YN YN pajybiem awi | | wouy payessush swoou)| (94 Ul) JUBWSEALI UO LIMSY (1)
. xe| pausjeg
SHUEQ U] UM SyJ4 W pajsanul punj snjding wie) Joys wo +5]02Q 210 +
SL0DU| Jsaialu] Ul 8SE3109p 0 JUN029Y Uo Jeak ISe| 0] paledwod YUoA 13N B|giBue]) Saxe| pue (CATY
SE 1]|g3 ul 3Seaidap 0} anp s| O)jed S|U} Ul 8sBaIDap Joj uoseal au) | Lz egL- (o] 1] [(]%)] pafojdw3 Jeyiden| 1saseju) alojag Buiwes| padojdw] jepde) uo uimay 0
suopeledo
YN N WN Loy anuassy Woud 18N (% uI) ones woid 18N 1)
[eyden
VN N YN Buppiopn abriany joeladQ Woly anuaaay uonel jaaoLuny [epden 1o ()
sa|geded
00°LL- vLiGL 90'EL apel] abelany saseyoIng |01}Bl 1anoun) sajqeled apel (6)
oljel
YN N Wi siojqag ebelany|oneladg wos- snussay|  19A0DUIN] S|QEAISDSY apel] W
N N WN Aouanu) aBelany|oneiedg Wold snuansy oney Jaaouung fojusau| (a)
uEq 8U} Yum SHA4 ul palsaul puny
SN|diNg Wue) oYS WOy BWi0ou| 1sa1aju] Ul 2SEaJ09p JO JUN0JJE
UO 3W0oUL I3Uj0 U1 9SES108P JO JUNOJDY U Jeak |se| 0} pasediuos Aynb3 s.apjoyaseys
Se Jjoid ut aseasnep 0} anp S| 0fjeJ S|y} U| DSEAIDSP I} UOSES! 8Y | 8Z'661- $Z0 (#z°0) abBeiany xe) Jsyy oid| (% w) oijey Ainb3 uo wnjay (p)
801MBS 198p
VN YN YN 201183 1990 Jny Bjqepiny Buiuies| oney abelanog aowueg jgeq (o)
“Ad Jueund ayy Buung 109 AQ 198Q -gns Jo aseajal Jo ynsal e se
Buimo.iog jo uoyippe o} enp si OEJ SIY} Ul 8SB210U| o} UOSED) 9y | BY'GEZ £L0 v o Ainb3 sJspjousseys siqaq [eio) oijey Aunb3-19aa (a)
s108foud Jo XadvD 10} SPUN4 Jo Lonesiin
10 1UN022Y Uo A4 jualnd auyy Buung souejeq jueg pue yseo
Ul 9SE2.08p 0} anp S| oRel JuaunD B4} Ul 8seal0a( Joj uoseal ay) | J6ge- raAl! L0 saljl|Igel JUBLINngD S}288Y UaLND OlEY JusLnND (e)
SoUBLIBA YZ0Z|520Z Yo4ep 1SLE 10jBUILIOUSQ i0jesaWwnN siejnoied| on's
acjuepeA ol usuepIsie
10} UosERY

‘$20Z'LE UoJB PUB GZ0Z'LE UDJepy pepua Jeak auj Joy sonel [gankieue aie Humoljoy ay |




Note No. — 34: Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts

1. Disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities:
Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for -

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

(i) Capital works
Contractors have lodged claims aggregating to X 1082,45,50,013/- (Previous year % 986,97,35,018/-)

against the Company on account of rate and quantity deviation, cost relating to extension of time,
idling charges due to stoppage of work/delays in handing over the site etc. These claims are being
contested by the company as being not admissible in terms of provisions of the respective contracts
or are lying at arbitration tribunal/other forums/under examination with the Company. These
include X 2,64,41,555/- (Previous year X 2,64,41,555/-) towards arbitration awards including
updated interest thereon, against the Company, which have been challenged/decided to be
challenged in the Court of Law.

Management has assessed the above claims and recognized a provision of X 25,37,33,197/-
(Previous year X Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and
estimated X 1047,76,20,560/- (Previous year X 986,97,35,018/-) as the amount of contingent
liability i.e. amounts for which Company may be held contingently liable. In respect of such
estimated contingent claims either the outflow of resources emhodying economic benefits is not
probable or a reliable estimate of the amount required for settling the obligation cannat be made.
In respect of the rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered
as remote.

(ii) Land Compensation cases

In respect of land acquired for the projects, some of the erstwhile land owners have filed claims for
‘higher compensation amounting to X Nil (Previous year X Nil) Before various authorities/courts.
Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and provided an amount of X Nil (Previous year %
Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and estimated % Nil
(Previous year X Nil) as the amount of contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered as
not probable.

(iii) Disputed Tax Demands

Disputed GST demand on payment made to CAMPA fund raised by Dy. Commissioner GST, Jammu is
X 3,55,61,746/- (Previous year X 3,22,22,395/-). Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and
provided an amount of X Nil (Previous year X Nil) based on probability of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits and X 3,55,61,746/- (Previous year X 3,22,22,395/-) are being
disclosed as contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered not probable. In respect of the
rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.

(iv) Others

Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters amount to X Nil (Previous year X Nil). These
claims are pending before various forums. Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and
provided an amount of X Nil (Previous year X Nil)based on probability of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits and estimated X Nil (Previous year X Nil) as the amount of contingent
liability as outflow of resources is considered as not probable. In respect of the rest of the
claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.



The above is summarized as below:

(Amount in X)

SI. | Particular | Claimsason | up todate | Contingent Contingent | Addition/ Decrease
No. s 31.03.2025 Provision liability as liahility as | (deduction) | of
against the | on on from contingent
claims 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | contingent | liability
liability from
during the | Opening
year Balance as
on
01.04.2024
(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii)=(v)-(vi) (viii)
Capital 1082,45,50,013 | 25,37,33,197 | 1047,76,20,560 | 986,97,35,018 | 60,78,85,542 | 69,53,91,583
- Works
Land . % = = - #
Compen-
2. .
sation
cases
Disputed 3,55,61,746 3,55,61,746 3,22,22,395 33,39,351 .
3. | tax
matters
4, | Others i % = = s
Total 1086,01,11,759 | 25,37,33,197 | 1051,31,82,306 | 990,19,57,413 | 61,12,24,893 | 69,53,91,583

(b) The above do not include contingent liabilities on account of pending cases in respect of service

matters and others where the amount cannot be quantified.

(c)

contingent liabilities.

(d)

Contingent Liabilities.

It is not practicable to ascertain and disclose the uncertainties relating to outflow in respect of

There is possibility of reimbursement to the company of X Nil (Previous year % Nil)towards above

(e) (i) An amount of X Nil (Previous year X Nil) stands paid towards above Contingent Liabilities in

(ii)

(f)

respect of Capital Works, pursuant to Niti Aayog directions issued vide OM No. 14070/14/2016-
PPPAU dated 5th September 2016, in cases where Arbitral Tribunals have passed orders in favour
of contractors and such awards/orders have been further challenged/being challenged by the
Company in a Court of Law. The amount so paid has been shown under Other Non-Current Assets
(Also refer Note No. 5).

An amount of X 80,07,292/- (Previous year X 79,38,932) stands paid /deposited with courts/paid
as per Court Order towards above contingent liabilities to contest the cases and has been shown
under Other Current Assets. (Also refer Note no. 13)

The Management does not expect that the above claims/obligations (including under litigation),
when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
company’s results of operations or financial condition.



2. Contingent Assets: Contingent assets in respect of the Company are on account of the following:

a) Counter Claims lodged by the company on other entities:

The company has lodged counter claims aggregating to % 13,15,58,833/-(Previous year ¥
3,51,81,330/-) against claims of other entities. These claims have been lodged on the basis of
contractual provisions and are being contested at arbitration tribunal/other forums/under
examination with the counterparty. It includes counter claims ofX Nil(Previous year X Nil) towards
arbitration awards including updated interest thereon.

Based on Management assessment, a favourable outcome is probable in respect of the claims
aggregating X 9,63,77,503/- (Previous year X Nil) and for rest of the claims, the possibility of any
inflow is remote. Accordingly, these claims have not been recognised.

b) Other Cases

Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters estimated by Management to be % Nil (Previous
year X Nil) has not been recognised.

3. Commitments (to the extent not provided for):

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account are as under:
(Amount in X)

Sl As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

rticulars
No. Particu

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv)

A Property Plant and Equipment (including

7322,60,88,534 9640,64,40,677
Capital Work in Progress) '

Intangible Assets -

1,41,43,102

Total

7322,60,88,534

9642,05,83,779

4.  Other Commitments (if any) : Nil

5. The effect of foreign exchange rate variation (FERV) during the year are as under:

(Amount in X)

Sl. | Particulars For the Year For the Year
No. ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(i) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as . -
FERV

(ii) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as & g
Borrowing Cost*

(iii) | Amount adjusted in the carrying amount of PPE - =

(iv) | Amount recognised in Regulatory Deferral Account 24,50,683 (4,06,085)
Balances

*There is however no impact on profitability of the Company, as the impact of change in foreign
exchange rates is recoverable from beneficiaries in terms of prevailing CERC (Terms and Conditions
of Tariff) Regulations 2019-24. The exchange rate variation included under borrowing cost for the
year is transferred to deferred foreign currency fluctuation assets (recoverable from beneficiaries)
as per Significant Accounting Policy of the Company.

6. Operating Segment:

a) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company.

b) The Company has a single geographical segment as all its Power Stations are located within the
Country.



7. Disclosures under Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”:
(A) List of Related parties:

(i) Parent Company:

Principle place of
Name of Company operation
NHPC Limited India
JKSPDC India

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel:

sl.
No.

Name

Position Held

Shri Suresh Kumar,|AS (Retd)

Chairman -Nominee of JKSPDC (w.e.f. 22.11.2019)

Shri H.Rajesh Prasad , IAS

Director -Nominee of JKSPDC (w.e.f. 20.10.2022)

Shri Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS

Director -Nominee of JKSPDC(w.e.f. 31.08.2023)

Shri R.P. Goyal

Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 01.10.2020)

Shri Vijay Kumar Sinha

Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 01.01.2024 to
31.07.2024)

Shri Ram Swaroop

Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 13.08.2024 to
04.09.2024)

Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh

Director -Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 04.09.2024)

Shri Ramesh Mukhiya

Managing Director-Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f.
05.12.2023)

Smt. Madhusmita Pany

Director-Nominee of NHPC (w.e.f. 21.12.2022)
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Shri Sudhir Anand

Company Secretary, CVPPL

(iii) Post-Employment Benefit Plans of CVPPL;

; . Principal place of
Name o Relatrjld Parties operation
CVPPPL Employees Social Security Scheme Trust India
NHPC Ltd. Employees Provident Fund India
NHPC Employees Social Security Scheme Trust India
NHPC Ltd. Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation India
Scheme Trust '




(iv) Other entities with joint-control or significant influence over the Company:

The Company is a Joint Venture of NHPC Limited (A Govt. of India Enterprise) & JKSPDC (A Govt. of
J&K Enterprise) controlled by Central Government and J&K Government respectively. The
Company has applied the exemption available for government related entities and has made
limited disclosures in the Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS 24. Accordingly, details
of material/significant transaction carried out with the Central Govt and J&K Govt. only have been
disclosed. Transactions with these related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of
business at normal commercial terms.

Sk Name of the Government Nature of Relationship with NHPC
No. .
1 Government of India Shareholder having control over Parent
Company(NHPC)
2 NHPC Holding Company
3 JKSPDC Shareholder having significant influence
over the Company
4 Government of Jammu & Kashmir Shareholder having control over Parent
Company(JKSPDC)

(B) Transactions and Balances with related parties are as follows:
(i) Transactions and Balances with NHPC:-

(Amount in X)

Transactions with Parent For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(i) (ii) (iii)
Services received by the Company from
= NHPC 30,82,67,536 28,88,26,232 |

Interest Paid on Loan taken from

= NHPC 1,38,90,411 5

Dividend paid by the company to

= NHPC

Equity contributions (including share
application money) received by the company
from:

= NHPC 708,21,00,000 449,81,00,000

Reimbursement of Cost of employee on
deputation/Posted by

= NHPC

Loans & Advances given by the Company to:

= NHPC - -
Loans & Advances received by the Company
from:

=  NHPC# 200,00,00,000 -

Refund of Loans & Advances by the Company




to:

= NHPC

200,00,00,000

# The loan was taken @ 8.45% from NHPC.

(Amount in X)

Balances with Parent

As at 31.03.2025

As at31.03.2024

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Receivable (unsecured) from

=  NHPC

Payable (unsecured) to

= NHPC

25,53,36,443

14,78,78,514

Investment in Equity by

=  NHPC

3330,10,12,860

2621,89,12,860

Loans & Advances Receivable from:

= NHPC

Loans & Advances Payable to:

= NHPC

(i) Transactions and Balances with JKSPDC:-

(Amount in X)
Transactions with JKSPDC For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) (i) (iii)
Services Provided by the Company
Services Received by the Company
Equity contributions (including share application 242,30,00,000 312,61,00,000
money) received by the company
Loan given by the company
Loan received by the company
Interest on Loan Paid by the company
Interest on Loan received from the company
Grant received during the year
Balances with JKSPDC As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Receivable (unsecured)

Payable (unsecured)




Investment in Equity

2299,91,00,000

2057,61,00,000

Loans & Advances Receivable

Loans & Advances Payable

(i) Transactions and Balances with Key Management Personnel:

PAN-
AJUPK7760L

(Amount in X)
Particulars Transactions for the year ended 31.03.2025 and Balances as at 31.03.2025
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management
Personnel (KMP)
Name Short Term | Post- Other [Termination | Interest Sitting | Outsta
Employee | Employ- | Long Benefits received on | Fee nding
Benefits ment Term outstanding Loans
Benefits | Benefits loans receiva
ble
1. Chairman
Suresh Kumar 24,41,287

2. Managing Director

Ramesh
Mukhiya

PAN:-
AFUPM3498K

88,66,240

3. Company Secretary

PAN-
AJUPK7760L

Sudhir Anand 29,16,974
PAN-
AFIPA4889E
(Amount in )
Particulars Transactions for the year ended 31.03.2024 and Balances as at 31.03.2024
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management
Personnel (KMP)
Name Short Term | Post- Other  [Termination | Interest Sitting | Outsta
Employee | Employ- | Long Benefits received on | Fee nding
Benefits ment Term outstanding| Loans
Benefits | Benefits loans receiva
ble
1. Chairman
Suresh Kumar 23,25,791




2. Managing Director

Ramesh 22,14,743

Mukhiya

PAN:-
AFUPM3498K

Hasan Nadeem 42,22,446

PAN:-
ABGPH4911G

3. Company Secretary

Sudhir Anand 27,58,541

PAN-
AFIPA4889E

(iv) Transactions& Balances with Post -Employment Benefit Plans

(Amount in ¥)

Post -Employment Benefit
Plans

Contribution by the company (Net of
Refund from Post -Employment Benefit
Plans)

Balances with Post -
Employment Benefit Plans

For the year
ended 31.03.2025

For the year

As at As at

31.03.2025

31.03.2024

ended 31.03.2024

CVPPPL Employees Social 14,21,800 8,67,975 - &

Security Scheme Trust

NHPC Ltd. Employees 3,18,65,468 -

Provident Fund 3,21,67,526 -

NHPC Employees Social 8,51,650 _ C

Security Scheme Trust 8,34,825 )

NHPC Ltd. Employees 2,12,16,796 -
3,26,54,732 -

Defined Contribution

(v) Significant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Company ( i.e

Central Government)

(Zin.)

Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2025

For the year ended
31.03.2024

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Services Received by the Company

Services Provided by the Company

Sale of goods ( Electricity) by the Company

Dividend Paid during the year

Subordinate Debts received by the company

568,68,00,000

604,22,00,000

Interest on Subordinate debts paid by company

(including interest accrued)

Grant Received During the year

33,84,33,000




(vi) Outstanding balances and guarantees with Central Government:

(Amount in )

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

As at 31.03.2024

|(vil)T (i)

(ii)

(iii)

Bal'gnces with Central Government (that has control over
thehCompany)

S=  Loan Payable to Government (Subordinate debts)

2196,39,00,000

1627,71,00,000

a_
®  Payables (unsecured)

= Receivables (Unsecured)

{vii)s
ignificant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Company (i.e J&K
Government)
(Amountin %)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(i) (i) (iii)
Services Received by the Company 1,33,39,602 58,20,92,938

Services Provided by the Company

Sale of goods ( Electricity) by the Company

Dividend Paid during the year

Subordinate Debts received by the company

Interest on Subordinate debts paid by company
(including interest accrued)

Grant Received During the year

(viii) Outstanding balances and guarantees with J&K Government:
(Amount in X)
Particulars As at As at 31.03.2024
31.03.2025
L) T
ALY L A =
. (i) (ii) (iii)
Balances with Central Government (that has control over
thenCompany)
Z' Loan Payable o Government (Subordinate debts)
c® Payables (unsecured)
i‘. Receivables (Unsecured) 474,58,00,784 258,61,69,852

C) Other notes to related party transactions:




(i) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties:

(a)

(b)

Transactions with the state governments and entities controlled by the Government
of India are carried out at market terms on arms- length basis (except subordinate
debts received from Central Government at concessional rate) through a transparent
price discovery process against open tenders, except in a few cases of procurement of
spares/services from Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) for proprietary items
on single tender basis due to urgency, compatibility or other reasons. Such single
tender procurements are also done through a process of negotiation with prices
benchmarked against available price data of same/similar items.

Consultancy services received by the Company from Parent Company are generally on
nomination basis at the terms, conditions and principles applicable for consultancy
services provided to other parties.

Outstanding balances of Parent company as at 31.03.2025 are unsecured and
settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances other than loans are
interest free. No impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties has been recognised. Assessment of impairment is undertaken each financial
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

8. Particulars of Security: The carrying amount of assets mortgaged/ hypothecated as security for
borrowings are as under.

(Amount in Rs)

sl. Particulars As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024
No Specific Common Assets | Specific Assets | Common
Assets mortgaged/ mortgaged/ Assets
mortgaged/ | hypothecated hypothecated | mortgaged
hypothecate | against against / .
d against Borrowings # Borrowings hypotheca
Borrowings : ted against
Borrowing
s
1 Property, Plant & 98,18,83,862 -
Equipment - =
5 Capital work in 7671,37,55,252 -
progress - -
3 Financial Assets-Others - ? § -
Total -| 7769,56,39,114 - .
# The actual value of security pledged against common pool of assets is ¥ 7769,56,39,114/-as on
31.03.2025 (Previous Year Nil).

9. Disclosures Under Ind AS-19 “ Employee Benefits”:

(A) Defined Contribution Plans-

Social Security Scheme: The Company has a Social Security Scheme in lieu of the
erstwhile scheme of compassionate appointment. The Company also makes a matching
contribution per month per employee and such contribution was in operation i.e.
05.06.2018. The scheme has been created to take care of and helping bereaved families
in the event of death or permanent total disability of its employee. The expenses
recognised during the year towards social security scheme are % 14,21,800/- (Previous

(i)

(i)

year X 8,67,975/-).

Provident Fund: The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at
predetermined rates to Employees Provident Fund Organization. The contribution to the
fund for the year is recognised as expense and is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss/Expenditure Attributable to Construction. The obligation of the Company is to make

fixed contribution.




(i)

(B) Defined Benefit Plans- Company has following defined post-employment benefit obligations:

(a) Description of Plans:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The ceiling limit of gratuity
is fixed as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, whereby every employee who has
rendered continuous service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity at 15 days
salary (15/26 X last drawn basic salary plus dearness allowance) for each completed
year of service subject to a maximum of X 0.20 Crores on superannuation, resignation,
termination, disablement or on death. The liability for the same is recognised on the
basis of actuarial valuation. '

Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS): The Company has a Retired Employee
Health Scheme, under which retired employee and/or spouse of retiree and eligible
dependent children of deceased/retired employees are provided medical facilities in
the empanelled hospitals under Group Medical Claim Policy. They can also avail
treatment as Out-Patient subject to a ceiling fixed by the Cnmpany The liability for the
same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Allowances on Retirement/Death: Actual cost of shifting from place of duty at which
employee is posted at the time of retirement to any other place where he / she may like
to settle after retirement is paid as per the rules of the Company. In case of death,
family of deceased employee can also avail this facility. The liability for the same is
recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(b) Disclosure of Balance Sheet amounts and sensitivity analysis of Plans:

Gratuity: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with
the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as

follows:
(Amount in %)

Particulars Present Value Fair value of Net Amount

of Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/

(Asset)
(i) (ii) iii=(i)-(ii)
2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024 4,86,44,323 4,86,44,323
Current Service Cost 80,21,832 80,21,832
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 35,26,713 .35,26,713
Benefits Paid -12,67,354 -12,67,354
Total Amount recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss/
Expenditure During Construction 1,02,81,191 1,02,81,191

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/ (Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in
demographic assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-




-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

5,89,25,514 -

5,89,25,514

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025

(Amount in %)

Particulars

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Present Value
of Obligation

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i) (i)

ii=(1)-(ii)

2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023

4,05,03,585 -

4,05,03,585

Current Service Cost

53,96,408 -

53,96,408

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

29,93,215 .

29,93,215

Benefits Paid

-2,48,885 =

-2,48,885

Total Amount recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss/
Expenditure During Construction

81,40,738 -

81,40,738

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/ (Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in
demographic assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

4,86,44,323 .

4,86,44,323

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of X Nil (previous year % Nil)
accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of employees of NHPC
posted in CVPPL.

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans are as follows:
(Amount in X)

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Present Value of unfunded obligations 5,89,25,514 4,86,44,323
Fair value of Plan Assets

Deficit/(Surplus) of unfunded plans 5,89,25,514 4,86,44,323
Unfunded Plans

Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling 5,89,25,514 4,86,44,323




Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Changein Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assumptions Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Discount Decrease Increase
Rate 0.50% 0.50% by 7.47% 7.67% by 8.28% 8.52%
Salary Increase Decrease
growth rate | 0.50% 0.50% by 3.14% 4.51% by 3.82% 4.82%

(i)  Retired Employees Health Scheme (REHS): The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at

31.03.2025 and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during
the years 2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

(Amount in X)
Particulars Present Value of | Fairvalue of | Net Amount
Obligation Plan Assets Obligation/
(Asset)
(i) (ii) iii = (i) - (ii)
2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024 3,21,07,647 - 3,21,07,647
Current Service Cost 77,88,882 77,838,882
Interest Expenses/ (Income) 23,27,804 - 23,27,804

Total Amount recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

1,01,16,686

- 1,01,16,686

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions;-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.§025

4,22,24,333

- 4,22,24,333




(Amount in )

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

(i)

ii = (1) - (i)

2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023

2,43,42,926

2,43,42,926

Current Service Cost

59,65,779

59,65,779

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

17,98,942

17,98,942

Total Amount recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

77,64,721

77,64,721

Re-measurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

3,21,07,647

3,21,07,647

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Construction and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of X Nil (previous year % Nil)
accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHPC posted in

CVPPL.

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans are as follows:

(Amount in )

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Present Value of unfunded obligations 4,22,24,333 3,21,07,647
Fair value of Plan Assets

Deficit/(Surplus) of unfunded plans 4,22,24,333 3,21,07,647

Unfunded Plans

Deficit/(Surplus) before asset ceiling

4,22,24,333

3,21,07,647




Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Change in Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assumptions Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31st 31st 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Discount Decreas Increase
Rate 0.50% 0.50% |eby 8.71% 9.20% by 9.01% 9.83%

(i)

Allowances on Retirement/Death: The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2025
and 31.03.2024 along with the movements in the net defined benefit obligation during the years

2024-25 and 2023-24 are as follows:

(Amount in )

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of
Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

(ii)

iii=(i)-(ii)

2024-25

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2024

2,94,421

- 2,94,421

Current Service Cost

61,713

= 61,713

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

21,346

- 21,346

Total Amount recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

83,059

83,059

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2025

3,77,480 |

- 3,77,480




(Amount in )

Particulars

Present Value of
Obligation

Fair value of

Plan Assets

Net Amount
Obligation/
(Asset)

(i)

(i)

ii=(i)-(ii)

2023-24

Opening Balance as at 01.04.2023

2,32,972

- 2,32,972

Current Service Cost

44,232

- 44,232

Interest Expenses/ (Income)

17,217

g 17,217

Total Amount recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure During
Construction

61,449

61,449

Remeasurements

Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount
included in interest expenses/(Income)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions

(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions

Experience (gains)/Losses

Total Amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income

Contributions:-

-Employers

-Plan participants

Benefit payments

Closing Balance as at 31.03.2024

2,49,421

- 2,49,421

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure attributable to
Constructions and total amount recognised under Other Comprehensive Income disclosed above
are based on the actuarial valuation report. This includes an amount of % Nil (previous year % Nil)
accounted as receivable/(payable) from/to Parent in respect of employees of NHPC posted in

CVPPL.

The net liability disclosed above related to unfunded plans.



Sensitivity Analysis — The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the
weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars | Change in Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
assumptions Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions
31st 3ist 31st 31st 31st 31st
March March March March March March
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Discount Decrease Increase
Rate 0.50% 0.50% by 7.49% 9.60% by 8.12% 10.41%
(c) Defined Benefit Plans: Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Discount Rate 6.99% 7.25%
Salary growth rate 6.50% 6.50%

(d) Risk Exposure: Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the

most significant of which are detailed below:

Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As
such, the company is exposed to various risks as follows:

A) Salary Increase- Actual salary increase will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary

increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk —

If Plan is funded then assets-liabilities mismatch and actual investment

return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact

the liability.

C) Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s

liability.

D) Mortality and disability ~ Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than
assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and
change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

(f) The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit plans is as follows:

The expected maturity analysis of Gratuity, Post employment Medical Benefits, A!Iowances on
Retirement/Death and Memento.

(Amount in X)

Particulars Lessthana | Between1-2 | Between Over 5 Total
year years | 2-5 years years

31.03.2025

Gratuity 15,03,620 12,03,179 | 43,48,530 | 5,18,70,185 | 5,89,25,514




Post-employment 71,752 89,325 2,98,732 | 4,17,64,524 | 4,22,24,333
Medical Benefits

(REHS)

Allowances on 1,039 7,958 26,068 3,42,415 3,77,480
Retirement/Death

TOTAL 15,76,411 13,00,462 | 46,73,330 | 9,39,77,124 | 10,15,27,327
31.03.2024

Gratuit\,_J 12,47,252 9,77,361 | 27,50,961 | 4,36,68,749 | 4,86,44,323
Post-employment +1,924 3,325 30,012 | 3,20,72,386 | 3,21,07,647
Medical Benefits

(REHS)

Allowances on 832 6,237 17,538 2,69,814 2,94,421
Retirement/Death

TOTAL 12,50,008 9,86,923 | 27,98,511 | 7,60,10,949 | 8,10,46,391

(C) Other long-term employee benefits (Leave Benefit): The Company provides for earned leave
and half-pay leave to the employees which accrue annually @ 30 days and 20 days
respectively. Earned Leave (EL) is also en-cashable while in service. The maximum ceiling of
encashment of earned leave is limited to 300 days. However, any shortfall in the maximum
limit of 300 days in earned leave on superannuation shall be fulfilled by half pay leave to that
extent. The liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation. The expenses
recognised during the year on the basis of actuarial valuation are X 5,67,86,533/- (Previous

year % 5,06,55,996/-).

(D) The corresponding expenditure of actuarial valuation in respect of employees of NHPC who are
presently on the rolls of Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited has been transferred to CVPPL
in the respective year through a debit/credit advice. The effect of the same has been

acknowledged in IUT certificate during the year

10. Particulars of income and expenditure in foreign currency and consumption of spares are as

under:-

(Amount in )

Sl. Particulars
No.

For the year
ended 31.03.2025

ended 31.03.2024

For the year

a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
i) Interest
ii) Other Misc. Matters

b) |Value of spare parts and Components

consumed in operating units.

i) Imported - -
ii) Indigenous = =
c) | Earning in foreign currency (Specify Nature) - -

11. Earnings Per Share:

a) The Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) are as undes:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Earnings per Shar:e before Regulatory Income (X) - (0.0251) 0.0262
Basic and Diluted




Earnings per‘ Share after Regulatory Income (%) — Basic (0.0246) 0.0261
and Diluted
Par value per share (%) 10 10

b) Reconciliation of Earning used in calculating Earnings Per Share:

c)

used as numerator (Amount in X)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Net Profit after Tax but before Regulatory Income
(12,72,61,925) 10,72,24,600

Net Profit after Tax and Regulatory Income used as
numerator (Amount in )

(12,48,11,242)

10,68,18,515

Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares used as denominator :
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
igh e ber of equity sh
Weig tgd Average number of equity shares used as 507,96,05,800 408,55,68,200
denominator

Disclosure related to Confirmation of Balances is as under :

(a) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and
other parties. There are no unconfirmed balances in respect of bank accounts and borrowings

from banks & financial institutions.

(b) The confirmation in respect of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Deposits, loans (other than
-employees), Advances to Contractors/Suppliers/Service Providers/Others including for
capital expenditure and material issued to contractors have been sought for outstanding
balances of X 0.05 Crore or above in respect of each party as at 31st December, 2024. Status
of confirmation of balances as at December 31, 2024 as well as amount outstanding as on

31.03.2025 is as under:

(Amount in )
Particulars Outstanding Amount Outstanding
amount as on | confirmed amount as on
31.12.2024 31.03.2025
Trade receivable (excluding unbilled)* - -
Deposits, Loans, Advances to 5162551143 | 4995234543 4700358119
contractors/  suppliers/ service
providers/ others including for capital
expenditure and material issued to
contractors
Trade/Other payables 1094685475 | 688609517 | 4193235574
Security Deposit/Retention Money 801681009 | 776844359 1187509341
payable

Beneficiaries and net of advance from customers.

* Trade receivables are including receivables on account of interest receivable from



(c) In the opinion of the management, unconfirmed balances will not require any adjustment
having any material impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.

13. Disclosure related to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Refer Note 29)
i As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two

per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately
preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the

year are as under:

(Amount in X)

S. Particulars For the vyear | For the year
No ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 ]
A Amount required to be spent during the year
()  Grossamount (2% of average net profit as 46,88,047 34,57,466
per Section 135 of Companies Act,2013)
(i)  Surplus arising out of CSR project - -
(iii)  Set off available from previous year - 1,20,074
(iv) Total CSR obligation for the year [{i)+(ii) -(iii)] 46,88,047 33,37,392
B Amount approved by the Board to be spent during 47,76,650 34,57,000
the year
& Amount spent during the year 19,88,047 14,70,000
D Set off available for succeeding years (C- A(iv)) - -
E Amount Unspent during the year (B-C) - 19,87,000
F CSR Expenditure to be incurred on Ongoing Projects 28,49,904 19,82,000
and deposited in Separate CSR Unspent Account
G Unspent Amount to be deposited in Fund » 5,000

Note:- The set off available in the succeeding years has not recognised as an asset as a matter of
prudence, considering the uncertainty involved in the adjustment of the same in future years.

(ii)

The breakup of CSR expenditure under various heads of expenses incurred is as below:

(Amount in )

SlL Heads of Expenses constituting CSR For the year For the
No. expenses ended year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
1 Health Care and Sanitation 19,88,047 14,70,000
2 Education and Skill Development - -
3 Women Empowerment /Senior Citizen - -
4 Environment & =
5 Art and Culture — =
6 Sports - -
7 Rural Development - -
8 Swachh Vidyalaya Abhiyan - -
S Swachh Bharat Abhiyan - -




10 Disaster Management = .

11 Contribution to Central Government Fund = -
(including Contribution to PM CARES Fund)

12 Administrative Overhead z 2

13 CSR Impact assessment - £

14 Ongoing Activity 28,49,904 19,82,000

15 Unspent CSR - 5000
Total amount 48,37,951 34,57,000

(i)

Other disclosures:-

(a) Details of expenditure incurred during the year paid in cash and yet to be paid in cash along with
the nature of expenditure (capital or revenue nature) is as under:-

(Amount in X)

Purpose For the year ended For the year ended 31.03.2024
31.03.2025
Paidin | Yetto be Total Paid in Yet to be Total
cash paid in (a+b) cash paid in (a+h)
(a) cash (b) (a) cash (b)
(i) | Construction/ - - - - -
Acquisition of any
asset
(ii) For purpose other 19,88,047 28,49,904 | 48,37,951 14,70,000 19,82,000 | 34,52,000
than (i) above
tha] 19,88,047 | 28,49,904 | 48,37,951 14,70,000 | 19,382,000 34,52,000

(b ) As stated above, a sum of X 28,49,904/- out of the total expenditure of % 48,37,951/- is yet to be
paid to concerned parties which are included in the relevant head of accounts pertaining to

liabilities.

14. Disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development .

Act, 2006 read with notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 11" October,2018 to the
extent information available with management are as under:

(Amount in )

Sl
No.

Particulars

As at

31.03.2025

As at
31.03.2024

(i)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier on Balance Sheet
date:
a) Trade Payables:

-Principal (Refer Note 20.3)

-Interest
b) Others:

-Principal(Refer Note 20.4)

-Interest

1,86,73,598

4,45,729

1,29,25,239

17,53,713

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the year.




(iii)

The amount of interest due and payable for the year
of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but -
without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006;

(iv)

The amount of interest accrued and remaining -
unpaid as on Balance Sheet date.

(v)

The amount of further interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues above are actually paid -
to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

15. Disclosures regarding leases as per IND AS -116 “Leases”:

A) Company as Lessee:

(i) Treatment of Leases as per Ind AS 116 :

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the
contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined
as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets
and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The Company has applied the following practical expedients on initial application of Ind AS 116:

a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic

environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than
12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

¢. Excluded the initial direct costs, if any from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of recognition of right-of-use asset.

d. Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
‘terminate the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to leases recognised during FY 2024-25
is 7.47%.

(ii) Nature of lease: The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of the
following assets:

(a)

(b)

Premises under cancellable lease arrangements for residential use of employees ranging
from 3-4 months to three years. '

Premises for offices, guest houses and transit camps on lease which are not non-cancellable

_and are usually renewable on mutually agreeable terms.



(i)

(iv)

(c) Land obtained on lease for construction of projects and / or administrative offices.

(d) Vehicles on operating leases generally for a period of 1 to 2 years and such leases are not

non-cancellable.

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss/ Expenditure Attributable to Construction in
respect of short term, low value and variable lease are as under:

(Amount in X)

S. No | Description 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024

1 Expenditure on short-term leases 6,60,63,012 | 2,67,33,116

2 Expenditure on lease of low-value assets & -

3 Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of | 81,73,647 67,21,010
lease liabilities

1,49,06,493/-).

Movement in lease liabilities during the year:

Commitment for Short Term Leases as on 31.03.2025 is % 1,86,90,782/- (Previous Year %

(Amount in )

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Opening Balance 90,58,702 1,49,39,319
Additions in lease liabilities 1,17,19,612 42,38,481
Finance cost accrued during the year 4,90,142 7,36,321
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 76,17,582 1,08,55,419
Closing Balance 1,36,50,874 90,58,702

16. Disclosures under Ind AS-27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’:

17.

Interest of Parent:
Principal Principal activities | Proportion of Ownership
Name of Companies place of Interest as at
operation 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
NHPC Limited India Power Generation 59.15% 54.02%
JKSPDC India Power Generation 40.85% 45.98%

Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets requires an entity to assess on each Balance Sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity is
required to estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. If there is no indication of a potential
impairment loss, the Standard does not require an enterprise to make a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount.

Management has determined that the project entrusted to the CVPPL are under

tendering/award/construction stage and no cash generating unit (CGU) exist as on date and there
exist no indication that would indicate for impairment of any of the CGUs during FY 2024-25.




18.

Nature and details of provisions (refer Note No. 17 and 22)

(i) General

(ii)

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a Finance Cost.

i) Provision for employee benefits (Other than provisions for defined contribution and
defined benefit plans which have been disclosed as per Ind AS-19 at S. No. 9 of Note No.
34):

a)  Provision for Performance Related Pay/Incentive:

Short-term Provision has been recognised in the accounts towards Performance Related Pay/
incentive to employees on the basis of Management estimates as per company’s rules in this
regard which are based on the guidelines of the Department of Public Enterprises, Government
of India.

b)  Provision for Employee Remuneration-Pay Anomaly

Short term provision for pay anomaly of the employees of the company has been recognised
pursuant to judgement of the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court in the matter of NHPC
Officers Association Vs. Union of India & Others and All India Diploma Engineers Council &
Others Vs. Union of India & Others.

Other Provisions:
a)  Provision for Committed Capital Expenditure:

Provision has been recognised at discounted value in case of non- current amount for Capital
Expenditure to be incurred towards environment, compensatory afforestation, local area
development, etc. which was a pre-condition for granting approval for construction of the
project and expenditure towards which had not been completed till commissioning of the
project. Such provisions are adjusted against the incurrence of actual expenditure as per
demand raised by the concerned State Government Authorities.

b)  Provisions for expenditure in respect of Arbitration Award/Court cases:

This includes provisions created on the basis of management assessment as to probable outflow
in respect of contractors claims against which arbitration award/Court decision have been
received and which have been further challenged in a Court of Law. Utilization/outflow of the
provision is to be made on the outcome of the case.

c)  Provisions- Others: This includes provisions towards:-

(i) Contractor claims, Land compensation cases, disputed tax demands and other cases
created on the basis of management assessment towards probable outflow.
Utilization/outflow of the provision is to be made on the outcome of the case.

(i) Wage revision of Central Government Employees whose services are utilised by the
company.




19. Regulatory Deferral Account balances in respect of exchange differences on Foreign Currency
Monetary items:

As per Ind AS 23- “Borrowing Costs”, borrowing cost on foreign currency loans to the extent
treated as an adjustment to interest costs is allowed to be capitalised during construction period.
Further, Ind AS 21-“The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” provides that exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items at rates different from those at .
which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial
statements shall be recognized in the Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Para D13AA of Ind AS 101- “First Time Adoption of Ind AS” provides that a first-time adopter may
continue the existing accounting policy adopted for accounting of exchange differences arising
from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items. Accordingly, for periods beginning
on or after 01.04.2016, all exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of monetary
items other than exchange difference on borrowings to the extent treated as an adjustment to
interest cost during construction period are to be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

As per the CERC Tariff Regulations 2014-19, any gain or loss on account of exchange risk variation
shall be recoverable as part of capital cost for calculation of tariff on Commercial Operation Date
(COD) of a project and on actual payment basis during Operation and Maintenance (O&M) period.
Further, CERC in previous tariff orders has allowed exchange differences incurred during the
construction period as a part of capital cost.

Keeping in view the provisions of Ind AS 114- “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” as regards
recognition and CERC Tariff Regulations 2014-19 as regards recoverability, exchange differences
arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items to the extent charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss are being recognized as ‘Regulatory Deferral Account balances’ with
effect from (with effect from.) 01.04.2016. These balances are adjusted from the year in which
the same become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries after Commercial Operation

Date (COD) of the Project.

The regulated assets (+)/liability (-) recognized in the books to be recovered from or payable to
beneficiaries in future periods are as follows:

(Amount in %)

Sl. No. | Particulars Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances
A Opening balance as on 01.04.2024 ' 52,31,023
B Addition during the year (assets (+)/ liability (-)) 26,67,201
C Amount collected (-)/refunded (+) during the year 2,16,518
D Regulatory income/(expense) recognized in the Statement of 24,50,683
Profit and Loss (B-C)
E Closing balance as on 31.03.2025 (A+D) 76,81,706

Tariff Regulations for the period 2019-2024 have been notified by the CERC. Regulations regarding
recoverability of Foreign Exchange rate Variation (FERV) as part of capital cost for calculation of
tariff on Commercial Operation Date (COD) of a project and on actual payment basis during O&M
period of a Power Station as per Tariff Regulations 2014-19 have been continued for the tariff
period 2019-24 also. Accordingly, Management considers that adverse changes in Tariff
Regulations are not likely to be a significant area of risk for the future recovery of RDA balances
recognized in respect of exchange differences on Foreign Currency Monetary items.




Recoverability of the Regulatory Deferral account balances is however, subject to Demand Risk
since recovery/payment of the regulatory deferral debit/credit balance shall be by way of billing
to the beneficiaries. Accordingly, the same is affected by the normal risks and uncertainties
impacting sale of electricity in India like difﬁculty in signing of long term PPAs, etc.

20. Disclosure regarding Relationship with Struck off Companies: Following is the disclosure regarding
balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Com panies Act, 2013 or section 560
of the Companies Act, 1956 as per requirement of Schedule-1Il of the Companies Act, 2013:

Name of Nature of Balance Relationship Balance Relationship —‘
the transactions with Outstanding | with the Outstandi | with the
struck struck off company as at struck off ng as at struck off
off 31.03.2025 | company, if 31.03.202 | company, if
company any, to be 4 any, to be
disclosed disclosed
NA Investment in Nil NA Nil NA
securities
NA Receivables Nil NA Nil NA
NA Payables Nil NA Nil NA
NA Shares held by struck Nil NA Nil NA
off company
NA Other outstanding Nil NA Nil NA
balances (to be
specified)

21. Disclosure regarding Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC):
Following is the disclosure as per requirement of Schedule-il of the Companies Act, 2013, where
any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period:

Brief description of | Location of the Period (in days or Reason for delay in
the charges or Registrar months) by which registration
satisfaction such charge had to

be registered
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil

22.  Changes in the accounting policies and estimates does not have any material impact on the

financial statements of the company.

23.  Order of the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court in the matter of NHPC Officers Association Vs.
Union of India & Others and All India Diploma Engineers Council and Others Vs. Union of India &
Others as per which pay anomalies in certain scales of pay were to be resolved w.e.fJanuary 1,
1997 was received during the year ended 31st March, 2025. Pursuant to the said Order, arrears
payable to employees/ ex-employees has been estimated at Rs 14,19,94,300/-. Out of the same,
Rs 12,27,41,820/- has been capitalized while Rs 1,92,52,480/- has been charged to the Statement
of Profit & Loss.




24. Other Disclosure required under Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party
identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year. '

(v) The provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable to the company as per Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act,2013

(vi) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

(vii)  The quarterly returns / statement of current assets filed by the company with banks /
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(viii)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

25. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary.

26. Reimbursement of State Goods and Services Taxes from State Taxes Department, UT of J&K

In terms of scheme “Reimbursement of State Goods and Services Taxes on Utilization of Goods and
Service in the Power Projects in the Union Territory of Jammu and Kashmir (RSGTPP)” notified by
Finance Department, Government of Jammu & Kashmir vide Notification SO. 281 dt. 17.08.2021,
State Taxes Department, Government of J&K reimburses State Goods and Services Taxes (SGST) on
utilization of Goods and Service for development and construction of PakalDul HEP, Kiru HEP & Kwar
HEP of the Company. Accordingly, claims for SGST reimbursement are being filed for invoices that
have been paid by the Company to Suppliers of goods and services.

As per ibid notification and subsequent guidelines, the reimbursement of SGST shall be made for
SGST on invoices which are reflected in GSTR 2A of the Company and cash paid by it on Reverse
Charge Mechanism (RCM) basis. Consequently, SGST on supplier invoices which are reflected in
GSTR-2A of the Company and cash paid by it on Reverse Charge Mechanism (RCM) basis have been
recognized in the books of accounts as recoverable from State Taxes Department, Government of
J&K (refer Note 11). Further, SGST on invoices amounting to Rs. 1,47,49,185/- (Previous Year Rs.
1,30,96,505) which are not appearing in GSTR 2A are already included in PPE/CWIP and shall be



recognised as recoverable from State Taxes Department, Government of J&K when they get

reflected in GSTR 2A after reconciliation (ongoing process) with corresponding adjustment to
PPE/CWIP.

Signed as an annexure to Balance Sheet

for V A K & Associates. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants .
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Q /‘ (Rajendra Péd Goyal) (Rame ukhiya)
Director ManagingiDirector
DIN No.08645380 DIN No. 104156
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Partner
MRN: 502417 m -
(Sanjay Kyma#Gupta) Sudhir Ariand)
General Manager (Finance) CompanySecretary
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